
           
 

AGENDA
ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD

June 1, 2020–8:35 a.m.
Escambia County Central Office Complex

3363 West Park Place, Room 104
             
1. Call to Order.  
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.  
 

3. Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement.   
 

4. Approval of Minutes.  
 

A.   A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the March 3, 2020 Planning Board Meeting.

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for May 2020.

C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for June 2020.
 

5. Acceptance of Planning Board Meeting Packet.  
 

6. Public Hearings.  
 

A.    A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the
Future Land Use Map - SSA-2020-01

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for adoption, an Ordinance amending the Future Land
Use (FLU) Map for a Small Scale Amendment, SSA-2020-01

 

7. Action/Discussion/Info Items.  
 

A.   Lot of Record Date Change Discussion.
 

B.   RVs Allowed for Living in District 5 where Mobile Homes are Allowed
Discussion.



 

C.   Tiny Homes Discussion.
 

8. Public Forum.  
 

9. Director's Review.  
 

10. County Attorney's Report.  
 

11. Scheduling of Future Meetings.  
 

The next Regular Planning Board meeting is scheduled for Monday, July 6,
2020 at 8:30 a.m., in the Escambia County Central Office Complex, Room
104, First Floor, 3363 West Park Place, Pensacola, Florida.

 

 

12. Announcements/Communications.  
 

13. Adjournment.  
 



   
Planning Board-Regular   4. A.           
Meeting Date: 06/01/2020  

Agenda Item:
A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the Meeting
Resume' Minutes of the March 3, 2020 Planning Board Meeting.

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for May 2020.

C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for June 2020.

Attachments
Draft March 3, 2020 Regular Planning Board Meeting Minutes
Monthly Action Follow-Up
Six Month Outlook



D R A F T
MINUTES OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD

 March 3, 2020

CENTRAL OFFICE COMPLEX
3363 WEST PARK PLACE, BOARD CHAMBERS

PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
(8:35 A.M. – 1:00 P.M.)

 

Present:  Reid Rushing   
   Jay Ingwell   
   Timothy Pyle   
   Stephen Opalenik   
   Walker Wilson   
   Gary Sammons   
Absent: Wayne Briske, Chairman
   Patty Hightower
   Eric Fears
Staff Present: Allyson Lindsay, Urban Planner II

Andrew Holmer, Division Manager, Planning & Zoning
Horace Jones, Director, Development Services
Juan Lemos, Senior Planner, Planning & Zoning
Kayla Meador, Administrative Supervisor
Kia Johnson, Assistant County Attorney

 

 

               

1.   Call to Order.
 

2.   Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.
 

3.   Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement. 
 
  Motion by Gary Sammons, Seconded by Reid Rushing 

Motion was made to waive the reading of the legal advertisement. 
  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other:  Wayne Briske (ABSENT) 
  Eric Fears (ABSENT) 

 

4.   Approval of Minutes.
 



A.      A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the February 4, 2020, Planning Board Meeting.

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for February 2020.

C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for March 2020.

  

 
  Motion by Gary Sammons, Seconded by Reid Rushing 

Motion was made to approve the minutes from the February 4, 2020 Planning
Board meeting. 

  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other:  Wayne Briske (ABSENT) 
  Eric Fears (ABSENT) 

 

5.   Acceptance of Planning Board Meeting Packet.
 

6.   Public Hearings.
 

A.      Case #: OSP-2019-02
Applicant: Frank & Elizabeth

Westmark, Owners
Address: 2025 Kingsfield Road
Property
Size:

84.10 +/- acres

From: Conservation Neighborhood
To: MU-S, Mixed-Use

Suburban

  

 
  Motion by Reid Rushing, Seconded by Gary Sammons 

Motion was made to accept Westmark Exhibits. 
  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other:  Wayne Briske (ABSENT) 
  Eric Fears (ABSENT) 

 
  Motion by Gary Sammons, Seconded by Reid Rushing 

Motion was made to recommend approval of OSP-2019-02. 
  Vote: 4 - 1 Approved
 

Voted No:  Jay Ingwell 
Other:  Wayne Briske (ABSENT) 
  Eric Fears (ABSENT) 

 

B.        



B.      Case #: OSP-2019-03
Applicant: Clyde L. Jolly, Agent for

Miriam C. Arnold Life Estate,
Cecil D. Arnold & Cynthia A.
Jolly, Owners

Address: 1900 BLK W Kingsfield Road
Property
Size:

4.04 +/- acres

From: Conservation Neighborhood
To: MU-S, Mixed-Use Suburban

  

 
  Motion by Gary Sammons, Seconded by Reid Rushing 

Motion was made to recommend approval of OSP-2019-03. 
  Vote: 4 - 1 Approved
 

Voted No:  Jay Ingwell 
Other:  Wayne Briske (ABSENT) 
  Eric Fears (ABSENT) 

 

C.      Case #: OSP-2019-04
Applicant: Clyde L. & Cynthia A. Jolly,

Owners
Address: 1955 W Kingsfield Road &

2003 W Kingsfield Road
Property
Size:

5.99 +/- acres

From: Conservation Neighborhood
To: MU-S, Mixed-Use Suburban

  

 
  Motion by Reid Rushing, Seconded by Gary Sammons 

Motion was made to recommend approval of OSP-2019-04. 
  Vote: 4 - 1 Approved
 

Voted No:  Jay Ingwell 
Other:  Wayne Briske (ABSENT) 
  Eric Fears (ABSENT) 

 

D.       A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending Part II of the
Escambia County Code of Ordinances, The Escambia County Comprehensive
Plan 2030.

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County Commissioners
(BCC) for transmittal to DEO, an Ordinance amending Chapter 7 , Policy 1.1.1,
amending the Future Land Use Map.

  

 



  Motion by Gary Sammons, Seconded by Jay Ingwell 

Motion was made to accept speaker narrative. 
  Vote: 4 - 1 Approved
 

Voted No:  Reid Rushing 
Other:  Wayne Briske (ABSENT) 
  Eric Fears (ABSENT) 

 
  Motion by Gary Sammons, Seconded by Reid Rushing 

Motion was made to recommend approval of changing the FLU to MU-U. 
  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other:  Wayne Briske (ABSENT) 
  Eric Fears (ABSENT) 

 

E.      A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance adopting the 2019-2023
Update to the Five-Year Schedule of Capital Improvements for incorporation into
Part II of the Code of Ordinances

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County Commissioners
(BCC) for adoption, an Ordinance adopting the 2019-2023 Update to the Five-Year
Schedule of Capital Improvements for incorporation into Part II of the Code of
Ordinances.

  

 
  Motion by Gary Sammons, Seconded by Jay Ingwell 

Motion was made to recommend approval. 
  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other:  Wayne Briske (ABSENT) 
  Eric Fears (ABSENT) 

 

7.   Action/Discussion/Info Items.
 

8.   Public Forum.
 

9.   Director's Review.
 

10.   County Attorney's Report.
 

11.   Scheduling of Future Meetings.
 

  The next Regular Planning Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, April 7,
2020, at 8:30 a.m., in the Escambia County Central Office Complex, Room 104,
First Floor, 3363 West Park Place, Pensacola, Florida.

 

12.   Announcements/Communications.



12.   Announcements/Communications.
 

13.   Adjournment.
 



1 
 

Memorandum 
 
TO:  Planning Board 
 
FROM: Kayla Meador, Board Clerk 
 
DATE:  May 21, 2020 
 
RE:  Monthly Action Follow-Up Report for May 2020 
 
The following is a status report of Planning Board (PB) agenda items for the prior month of 
February. Some items include information from previous months in cases where final disposition 
has not yet been determined. Post-monthly actions are included (when known) as of report 
preparation date. Items are listed in chronological order, beginning with the PB initial hearing on 
the topic. 
 
PROJECTS, PLANS, & PROGRAMS 
 
 
COMMITTEES & WORKING GROUP MEETINGS 
 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS 
  
• Text Amendments: 
• Map Amendments: 

 
LSA-2019-05 FLU change from C to MU-U 

12-03-19 PB recommended approval 
01-07-20 BCC dropped case 
04-02-20 BCC postponed 
06-18-20 BCC meeting 
 

OSP-2019-01 
02-04-20 PB recommended approval 
03-05-20 BCC dropped per applicant 

 
OSP-2019-02 

02-04-20 PB meeting – was not heard 
03-03-20 PB meeting 
03-05-20 BCC transmitted to DEO 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
3363 WEST PARK PLACE 

PENSACOLA, FLORIDA 32505 
PHONE: 850-595-3475 

FAX: 850-595-3481 
www.myescambia.com 



2 
 

06-04-20 BCC meeting 
 
OSP-2019-03 

02-04-20 PB meeting – was not heard 
03-03-20 PB meeting 
03-05-20 BCC transmitted to DEO 
06-04-20 BCC meeting 

 
OSP-2019-04 

02-04-20 PB meeting – was not heard 
03-03-20 PB meeting 
03-05-20 BCC transmitted to DEO 
06-04-20 BCC meeting 
 

LSA-2020-01 
02-04-20 PB meeting – was not heard 
03-03-20 PB meeting 
03-05-20 BCC transmitted to DEO 
06-18-20 BCC meeting 

 
LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE ORDINANCES 
 
 
REZONING CASES  

 
1. Rezoning Case Z-2020-01 

02-04-20 PB recommended approval 
03-05-20 BCC approved 
 

2. Rezoning Case Z-2020-02 
02-04-20 PB recommended approval 
03-05-20 BCC approved 



PLANNING BOARD MONTHLY SCHEDULE 
SIX MONTH OUTLOOK FOR JUNE 2020 

(Revised 5/21/20)  
 

A.H. = Adoption Hearing T.H. = Transmittal Hearing P.H. = Public Hearing 
* Indicates topic/date is estimated—subject to staff availability for project completion and/or citizen liaison  

 

Meeting Date 
 

LDC Changes and/or 
Public Hearings 

Comprehensive 
Plan 

Amendments 
Rezoning 

Reports, 
Discussion and/or 

Action Items 

Monday, June 1, 2020  • SSA-2020-01 • Z-2020-03 
• Z-2020-04 

• Changing LOR date 
• RVs in D5 
• Tiny Homes 

 

Monday, July 6, 2020 • Changing LOR Date • SSA-2020-02 
• SSA-2020-03 

• Z-2020-05 
• Z-2020-06 

• Comp Plan Annual 
Report 

Tuesday, August 4, 2020     

Tuesday, September 1, 2020     

Tuesday, October 6, 2020     

Tuesday, November 2, 2020     

 
Disclaimer: This document is provided for informational purposes only. Schedule is subject to change. Verify all topics on the current meeting 
agenda one week prior to the meeting date. 



   
Planning Board-Regular   6. A.           
Meeting Date: 06/01/2020  
Issue: A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the

Future Land Use Map - SSA-2020-01
From: HORACE JONES, Director 
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
 A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the Future Land Use Map
- SSA-2020-01

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) for
adoption, an Ordinance amending the Future Land Use (FLU) Map for a Small Scale
Amendment, SSA-2020-01

BACKGROUND:
The small-scale amendment to the future land use (FLU) map of the County proposes to
change the FLU category of a parcel on a 1.88 (+/-) acres from commercial (C) to
Mixed-Use Surban district.  The parcel is currently vacant and the applicants request is
for the purpose of developing a residential complex with approximately 34 dwelling units
on site but due to the current Commercial FLU this would be limited.  They are seeking
Mixed-Use Suburban to be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impact is anticipated by the adoption of this Ordinance.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The attached Ordinance has been reviewed and approved for legal sufficiency by Kia
Johnson, Assistant County Attorney. Any recommended legal comments are attached
herein.

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are required for implementation of this Ordinance.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The proposed Ordinance is consistent with the Board’s goal “to increase citizen
involvement in, access to, and approval of, County government activities.”

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:



IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
This Ordinance amending the FLUM of the Comprehensive Plan will be filed with the
Department of State following adoption by the BCC. Implementation of this Ordinance
will consist of an amendment to the FLUM and distribution of a copy of the adopted
Ordinance to staff and interested citizens.

The proposed Ordinance was prepared by the Development Services Department, in
cooperation with the County Attorney’s Office and all interested citizens. The
Development Services Department will ensure proper advertisement.

Attachments
Working Case File
Draft Ordinance



 
 
 
 
 

SSA-2020-01 
 

 



W WRIGHT ST

N
GREEN

ST

N 
Z 

ST

LAKEW OOD RD
LYNCH

ST

W CERVANTES ST

M
YR

IC
K

ST

N 
Y 

ST

W GADSDEN ST

ALBA
PLENA ST

W
AT

ER
ST

EHRMANN
ST

N 
X 

ST

N 
Q 

ST

ELM
ST

W JACKS ON ST

GULF
ST
FORTUNAST

W
IGGINS

AVE N
V

ST

N R ST

N
T

ST

GAIL
DR

N NAVY
BLVD

W BELMONT ST

INTERLAKEN
ST

SHADOW LAWN LN

DA
VI

S O
N

ST

N 
U 

ST

MCLEOD ST

FR
IS

CO
CT

BROWNS
LN

S
P

ST

N 
S 

ST

MYRICK
ST

BAYOU DR

CA
HN

ST

S OLD CORRY FIELD RD
N 

R 
ST

NPINEW
OOD

LN

B
O LANDPL

N
ST

IL
LM

A N
S T

TURNERDR

CALLAW
AY

AVE

CHIEFS W AY

AUDUSSON
AVE

W NAVY BLVD

N 
KI

RK
ST

HERMEY
AVE

MYRICK S T

E DGEWATER DR
HARRISON

AVE

LOT US
CT

CHASEVILLE ST

CI
TR

US
 ST

N
W

ST

MANDALAY
DR

N
W

EN
TW

OR
TH

ST

S 
R ST

N
OL

D
CO

RR
Y

FI
E L

D
RD

IDLEWOOD DR

N
S

ST

EH

RM A N N
ST

W LA
RUA S TSH
OE

MA
KE

R 
ST

GR
AN

DV
IEW

 ST

BOEING
ST

LEGAIRCIR

W GADSDEN ST

W NAVY BLVD

RUEMAX ST

SRANT DR

W NAVY
BLVD

N
NE

W
W

AR
RI

NG
TO

N
RD

FRISCO RD

PELHAMRD

COKER
LN

FRONTE
RACIR

BA
RRANCAS AVE

LYNCH
ST

N 
Q 

ST

BILL PL

HURD
LN

KEYS
CT

MELDUM AVE

COAS TRD

BUDDYSLN

A LICE STMERITOST

W BELMONT ST

SE
AMARGE
LNDONALD

DR

GLOUCESTER
AVE

ADA W ILSONAVE

IDLEWOOD DR
IDLEWOOD DR

FREEDOM LN

S R ANT D
R

ALTON RD

ED GEW ATER DR

PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 1,000 2,000 3,000

Ft

SSA-2020-01
LOCATION MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer

BAYOU CHICO
CITY OF

PENSACOLA



MDR

Com

Com

HC/LI

MDR HC/LI

S 
ST

IL
LM

AN
 ST

W
AT

ER
 ST

MELDUM AVE

ELKTON ST

N PINEW
OOD LN

FRISCO RD

W NAVY BLVD

MAR QUESS T

CA
HN

 ST

W NAVY BLVD

BLANCHARD ST

REYMARDE
ST

N 
ST

IL
LM

AN
 ST

S PINEW
OOD LN

BILL PL

CHASEVI LLE
ST

RUTH
ST

FREEDOM LN

SHADOW LAWN LN

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

SSA-2020-01
500' RADIUS ZONING

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer

BAYOU CHICO

CITY OF
PENSACOLA



MU-U

C

C
C

MU-U MU-U

MU-U

S 
ST

IL
LM

AN
 ST

W
AT

ER
 ST

MELDUM AVE

ELKTON ST

N PINEW
OOD LN

FRISCO RD

W NAVY BLVD

MAR QUESS T

CA
HN

 ST

W NAVY BLVD

BLANCHARD ST

REYMARDE
ST

N 
ST

IL
LM

AN
 ST

S PINEW
OOD LN

BILL PL

CHASEVI LLE
ST

RUTH
ST

FREEDOM LN

SHADOW LAWN LN

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

SSA-2020-01
CURRENT FLU

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer

BAYOU CHICO

CITY OF
PENSACOLA



MU-U

C

C
C

MU-U MU-U

MU-U

MU-S

S 
ST

IL
LM

AN
 ST

W
AT

ER
 ST

MELDUM AVE

ELKTON ST

N PINEW
OOD LN

FRISCO RD

W NAVY BLVD

MAR QUESS T

CA
HN

 ST

W NAVY BLVD

BLANCHARD ST

REYMARDE
ST

N 
ST

IL
LM

AN
 ST

S PINEW
OOD LN

BILL PL

CHASEVI LLE
ST

RUTH
ST

FREEDOM LN

SHADOW LAWN LN

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

SSA-2020-01
PROPOSED FLU

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer

BAYOU CHICO

CITY OF
PENSACOLA



N 
ST

IL
LM

AN
 ST

S 
ST

IL
LM

AN
 ST

N PINEW
OOD LN

RUTH
ST

BLANCHARD ST

FRISCORD

MELDUM AVE

W
AT

ER
 ST

FRISCO RD

S PINEW
OOD LN

W NAVY BLVD
W NAVY BLVD

PI
NE

WOOD DR

SHADOW LAWN LN

FDOT

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 200 400 600

Ft

SSA-2020-01
AERIAL MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer

BAYOU CHICO

CITY OF
PENSACOLA



WARRINGTON

WARRINGTON

S 
ST

IL
LM

AN
 ST

W
AT

ER
 ST

MELDUM AVE

ELKTON ST

N PINEW
OOD LN

FRISCO RD

W NAVY BLVD

MAR QUESS T

CA
HN

 ST

W NAVY BLVD

BLANCHARD ST

REYMARDE
ST

N 
ST

IL
LM

AN
 ST

S PINEW
OOD LN

BILL PL

CHASEVI LLE
ST

RUTH
ST

FREEDOM LN

SHADOW LAWN LN

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

SSA-2020-01
CRA MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.

Andrew Holmer

BAYOU CHICO

CITY OF
PENSACOLA



Notice of Public Hearing Future Land 
Use Change Sign



Looking  south onto subject parcel 
from Navy Blvd



Looking  east from Navy Blvd



Looking west from Navy Blvd



Looking north onto subject parcel



March 19, 2020

I REBOL-BATTLE &ASSOCIATES
Civil Engineers and Surveyors

Christina Smith

Escambia County Development Services Department

3363 West Park Place

Pensacola, Florida 32505

Re: Bayou Chico Development

Future Land Use Map (FLUM) Amendment Submittal Package

RBA Project No. 2019.199

Dear Christina:

Please find enclosed the Future Land Use Map (FLUM) Amendment Package for the above referenced
project. The following items are included in the package for your review:

1) Owner: Bayou Chico, LLP c/o Kevin Hagen. Enclosed is a copy of the Escambia County Property
Appraiser information to verify proof of ownership and the, current, Warranty Deep showing
the owner of record.

2) The applicant requests to amend the Future Land Use Map from Commercial (Com) to Mixed-
Use Suburban (MU-S) for the purpose of developing a mixed use residential complex with
approximately 34 units.

3) One (1) copy of the Street Map depicting the general property location.

4) One (1) copy of the legal description of the exact property area proposed for a future land use
map amendment, including (a) street address; (b) property reference number; (c) boundary
survey; (d) total acreage requested for amendment.

5) One (1) copy of the Complete Data and Analysis

6) One (1) Check in the amount of $2,969.50

7) One (1) copy of the Survey

8) One (1) cd containing all of the above in .pdf format

If you have any questions or need any additional information, please call our office.

Sincerely,

Rebol-Battle & Associates, LLC

A

Patrick Hartman, El

Enclosures





ESCAMBIA COUNTY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT
3363 West ParkPlace,Pensacola, FL 32505 (850) 595-3475

FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT APPLICATION

(THIS SECTION FOR OFFICE USE ONLY):

TYPE OF REQUEST: SMALL SCALE FLU AMENDMENT
n LARGE SCALE FLU AMENDMENT ^

Current FLU: Cfl"> Desired FLU: MO-5 Zoning: C- Taken bv/fo^ M AX
Planning Board Public Hearing, date(s): "Tfoft

BCC Public Hearing, proposed date(s):

Fees Paid Receipt # Date:

OWNER'S NAME AND HOME ADDRESS AS SHOWN ON PUBLIC RECORDS OF
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FL

Name: Bayou Chico LLP

Address:

730 Bayfront Parkway Suite 4B

City: Pensacola State: JFL Zip Code: 32507

Telephone: ( 850 ) 530- 4226

Email: kevin@hhbuildinggroup.com

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY:

Street address: 3611 Navy Blvd Pensacola, FL 32507

Subdivision:

Westerly Heights

Property reference number: Section _38_ Township 2S Range 30

Parcel 3ioo Lot Part12 ooO Block 3 qq 0

Size of Property (acres) Approximately 1.88acres

FLU Page 3 of 8

06/01/20

07/02/20











3/9/2020 ESCPA - 3611 NAVY BLVD 32507

www.escpa.org/cama/Detail_a.aspx?s=382S303100000000 1/2

General Information
Reference: 382S303100000000
Account: 074556000
Owners: BAYOU CHICO LLP
Mail: 730 BAYFRONT PARKWAY SUITE 4B

PENSACOLA, FL 32502
Situs: 3611 NAVY BLVD 32507

Use Code: VACANT COMMERCIAL 
Taxing
Authority: COUNTY MSTU

Tax Inquiry: Open Tax Inquiry Window
Tax Inquiry link courtesy of Scott Lunsford
Escambia County Tax Collector

Assessments
Year Land Imprv Total Cap Val
2019 $180,400 $1,432 $181,832 $181,832
2018 $180,400 $46,566 $226,966 $226,966
2017 $180,400 $43,565 $223,965 $223,965

Disclaimer

Tax Estimator

File for New Homestead Exemption
Online

Sales
Data

Sale Date Book Page Value Type

Official
Records

(New
Window)

12/02/2019 8211 183 $575,000 WD View Instr
06/05/2018 7913 1434 $100 CT View Instr
05/18/2017 7716 1267 $100 CJ View Instr

03/2005 5593 1127 $550,000 WD View Instr
10/1999 4481 1138 $400,000 WD View Instr
07/1993 3390 393 $239,000 WD View Instr
06/1991 3023 54 $100 WD View Instr

Official Records Inquiry courtesy of Pam Childers
Escambia County Clerk of the Circuit Court and
Comptroller

2019 Certified Roll Exemptions
None

Legal Description
BEG AT NE COR OF LT 12 BLK 3 WESTERLY HTS PB 2 P 14
N 79 DEG 25 MIN E ALG S LI OF BLVD 486 5/10 FT FOR
POB S ON E LI...

Extra Features
ASPHALT PAVEMENT
CHAINLINK FENCE

ECPA Home

 
  

 
Real Estate Search Tangible Property Search Sale List

 
 

   Navigate Mode   Account Reference    Printer Friendly Version

Parcel
Information Launch Interactive Map

Section Map
Id:
CA161

Approx.
Acreage:
1.9059

Zoned:  
Com

Evacuation
& Flood
Information
Open Report

 View Florida Department of Environmental Protection(DEP) Data

+
–

Buildings

Images

http://www.escpa.org/cama/GenericGrid.aspx?m=dorcd&v=
https://escambia.county-taxes.com/public/real_estate/parcels/074556000
http://www.escpa.org/files/Misc/faqs10cap.pdf
http://www.escpa.org/cama/genericform.aspx?m=Disclaimer
http://www.escpa.org/cama/hscalcdefault.aspx?ref=382S303100000000
https://exol.escpa.org/welcome.aspx
http://dory.escambiaclerk.com/LandmarkWeb1.4.6.134/Search/DocumentAndInfoByBookPage?Key=Assessor&booktype=OR&booknumber=8211&pagenumber=183
http://dory.escambiaclerk.com/LandmarkWeb1.4.6.134/Search/DocumentAndInfoByBookPage?Key=Assessor&booktype=OR&booknumber=7913&pagenumber=1434
http://dory.escambiaclerk.com/LandmarkWeb1.4.6.134/Search/DocumentAndInfoByBookPage?Key=Assessor&booktype=OR&booknumber=7716&pagenumber=1267
http://dory.escambiaclerk.com/LandmarkWeb1.4.6.134/Search/DocumentAndInfoByBookPage?Key=Assessor&booktype=OR&booknumber=5593&pagenumber=1127
http://dory.escambiaclerk.com/LandmarkWeb1.4.6.134/Search/DocumentAndInfoByBookPage?Key=Assessor&booktype=OR&booknumber=4481&pagenumber=1138
http://dory.escambiaclerk.com/LandmarkWeb1.4.6.134/Search/DocumentAndInfoByBookPage?Key=Assessor&booktype=OR&booknumber=3390&pagenumber=393
http://dory.escambiaclerk.com/LandmarkWeb1.4.6.134/Search/DocumentAndInfoByBookPage?Key=Assessor&booktype=OR&booknumber=3023&pagenumber=54
http://www.escpa.org/cama/FullDscr.aspx?m=l&s=382S303100000000
http://www.escpa.org/Default.aspx
http://www.escpa.org/Default.aspx
http://www.escpa.org/Default.aspx
http://www.escpa.org/Default.aspx
http://www.escpa.org/Default.aspx
http://www.escpa.org/cama/Search.aspx
http://www.escpa.org/cama/TangibleSearch.aspx
http://www.escpa.org/cama/SaleSearch.aspx
http://www.escpa.org/ecpamap?s=382S303100000000
http://www.escpa.org/snapshots/sectionmap/CA161.pdf
http://www.escpa.org/cama/GenericGrid.aspx?m=cnz&v=
http://maps2.roktech.net/Escambia_SearchBar/propertyappraiser.html?reference=382S303100000000
https://ca.dep.state.fl.us/mapdirect/?focus=propertyappraiser&zoom=latlon&latDD=30.41041167521433&lonDD=-87.25982391176436&scale=5000&view=escambia


3/9/2020 ESCPA - 3611 NAVY BLVD 32507

www.escpa.org/cama/Detail_a.aspx?s=382S303100000000 2/2

3/12/19

The primary use of the assessment data is for the preparation of the current year tax roll. No responsibility or liability
is assumed for inaccuracies or errors.

Last Updated:03/09/2020 (tc.42441) 



3/9/2020 Landmark Web Official Records Search

dory.escambiaclerk.com/LandmarkWeb1.4.6.134/Search/DocumentAndInfoByBookPage?Key=Assessor&booktype=OR&booknumber=8211&pagenu… 1/3



3/9/2020 Landmark Web Official Records Search

dory.escambiaclerk.com/LandmarkWeb1.4.6.134/Search/DocumentAndInfoByBookPage?Key=Assessor&booktype=OR&booknumber=8211&pagenu… 2/3



3/9/2020 Landmark Web Official Records Search

dory.escambiaclerk.com/LandmarkWeb1.4.6.134/Search/DocumentAndInfoByBookPage?Key=Assessor&booktype=OR&booknumber=8211&pagenu… 3/3





Prepared by: 
 
 

 
REBOL-BATTLE & ASSOCIATES, LLC. 

Civil Engineers & Surveyors 
 

FL Certificate of Authorization #9657 
 
2301 N 9th Avenue, Suite 300 
Pensacola, FL 32503 
850.438.0400 
 
www.rebol-battle.com 
 

 
FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
(FLUM) AMENDMENT 
 
For 
 
Bayou Chico Development 
Parcel ID: 38-2S-30-3100-000-000 
Escambia County, Florida 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
March 2020 
 
 
 
 
Prepared for: 
Bayou Chico LLP 
c/o Kevin Hagen 
 
 
 
 
 
RBA Project No.: 2019.199 
 
 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

1. Introduction ..................................................................... 1 
2. General Property Information ........................................... 1 
3. Compatibility Analysis ...................................................... 2 
4. Public Facilities Impacts .................................................... 2 

4.1 Sanitary Sewer ......................................................... 2 
4.2 Solid Waste Disposal ................................................ 3 
4.3 Potable Water .......................................................... 3 
4.4 Stormwater Management ........................................ 3 
4.5 Traffic ...................................................................... 4 
4.6 Recreation and Open Space ...................................... 4 
4.7 Schools..................................................................... 4 
4.8 Power ...................................................................... 4 

5. Environmental, Historical and Archeological Impacts ........ 4 
6. Consistency with Comprehensive Plan .............................. 5 

 
SUPPLEMENTAL DOCUMENTS 

 
A. Project Location, Existing Zoning Map, Existing Future Land Use 

Map, Proposed Future Land Use Map, Current Land Use Map, 
and Surrounding Roads Map 

B. Emerald Coast Utilities Authority (ECUA) – Water and Sewer 
Availability Letter 

C. Escambia County Schools Level of Service Determination 
(Source: Escambia County School District) 

D. Wetland Maps (Source: Wetland Sciences, Inc.) 
E. Historical & Archeological Data (Source: Florida Master Site File) 
F. Power (Source: Gulf Power) 

  



1. Introduction 
This report provides a written request for a Future Land Use Map (FLUM) Amendment of 
Parcel Number 38-2S-30-3100-000-000 in Pensacola, Florida. The existing FLUM designation 
for the property is Commercial (Com). The desired FLUM Classification is Mixed-Use Suburban 
(MU-S). The parcel is zoned COM. This zoning district allows for multi-family developments. 
However the current FLU of Commercial (Com) requires a commercial component be 
included when developing a property. Since no commercial component is proposed, a FLU 
category more appropriate for multi-family developments is requested, (MU-S). This request 
is a less intensive category than exists currently. 

2. General Property Information 
PROPERTY ADDRESS: 3611 Navy Blvd 

PARCEL ID #: 38-2S-30-3100-000-000 

INTENDED PROPERTY USE: Mixed-Use Residential 

PROPERTY OWNER: Bayou Chico LLP 
730 BAYFRONT PARKWAY SUITE 4B 
Pensacola, FL 32507 

DEVELOPER: Bayou Chico LLP 
c/o Kevin Hagen 

AUTHORIZED AGENT: Jason Rebol 
Rebol-Battle & Associates 
2301 N. 9th Ave., Suite 300 
Pensacola, FL 32503 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: See enclosed Boundary Survey 

PROOF OF OWNERSHIP: See enclosed Tax Ownership Documents 

CURRENT ZONING: Commercial (Com) 

CURRENT FLU: Commercial (Com) 
PROPOSED FLU: Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S) 

The property is located at 3611 Navy Blvd in Escambia County, in the south eastern corner of 
the intersection of Navy Blvd and Pinewood Lane. The parcel includes approximately 1.88 
acres of property along the south side of Navy Blvd. Maps of the existing property are 
included in the “Supplemental Documents” section of this report. 

The requested FLUM Amendment to MU-S would allow for development of up to twenty-five 
(25) dwelling units per acre for the site. The developer is anticipating construction of 
approximately 34 units which calculates to 18.1 dwelling units per acre (34 units ÷ 1.88 acres). 

 



3. Compatibility Analysis 
The correct FLU category of the property is Commercial (Com). The desired FLUM Category is 
Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S). Existing properties adjacent to the subject property have the 
following FLUM designations: 

Current FLUM Designations of Surrounding Properties 

North: Commercial (Com) 

South: Commercial (Com) 

East:  N/A – east is Bayou Chico. 

West: Commercial (Com) 

Maps of the above listed properties and their designations is included in the “Supplemental 
Documents” section of this report.  The maps show the limits of the Commercial (Com) FLUM 
category. Outside of the adjacent properties, the surrounding areas along Navy Blvd are 
Commercial (COM) and Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U) outside of the Navy Blvd immediate 
properties. 

Based on the surrounding property information, the proposed land use amendment is 
considered compatible with adjacent land uses. 

4. Public Facilities Impacts 
The desired Zoning and Future Land Use Map changes have been analyzed to determine what 
impacts the maximum development conditions would have to the various public facilities and 
infrastructure that currently exists and serves the site. As mentioned, the requested FLUM 
Amendment to MU-S would allow for development of up to twenty-five (25) dwelling units 
per acre for the site; however the developer is anticipating construction of a maximum 34 
residential units (18.1 units/acre). The FLU requested and the proposed use is considered a 
reduction in intensity over the current FLU of Commercial. 

The following analysis compares impacts to public facilities for current conditions and future 
conditions (years 2019 & 2030) based on the maximum density calculated (34 dwelling units) 

4.1 Sanitary Sewer 
The property is located within the Emerald Coast Utilities Authority (ECUA) service area 
for sanitary sewer collection. A sanitary force main will be installed on Navy Blvd to 
connect to an existing ECUA force main located on Navy Blvd. Construction of an on-site 
sanitary lift station and connection to the existing force main would be proposed if 
designed, permitted and approved by ECUA.  



The estimated sanitary sewer demand for the maximum development conditions of 34 
dwelling units is approximately 5,100 gallons per day (150 gallons per household per day 
x 34 households).  The Emerald Coast Utilities Authority has indicated that they have the 
capacity to service the developed property. A copy of the ECUA water and sewer 
availability letter in included in the “Supplemental Documents” section of this report. 

According to the information listed above, it is determined that ECUA has the necessary 
capacity to provide sanitary sewer collection service to the developed site. However, any 
proposed development at the subject property would require the proper review and 
approval from ECUA prior to service connection. 

4.2 Solid Waste Disposal 
Solid waste collection service for development of the subject property shall be provided 
by the Emerald Coast Utilities Authority. Disposal of solid waste in the region is routed to 
the Perdido Landfill in Cantonment, Florida. The landfill is operated by the Escambia 
County Department of Waste Management. 

Projected solid waste for the proposed development can be estimated at 714 pounds per 
day (6ppc/day x 34 units x 3.5 persons per unit). This value is estimated for a 34 dwelling 
units and, according to ECUA and Escambia County officials, is within the population 
projections for the landfill. Any future development of the site will not adversely affect 
the County landfill Level of Service (LOS). 

4.3 Potable Water 
The property is located within the Peoples Water Service Company service area for 
potable water distribution. An existing water service main (6”) is located along Navy Blvd 
and on S Pinewood Lane. Connection to the 6” water main is proposed. 

The estimated potable water demand for the maximum development conditions of 34 
dwelling units is approximately 5,100 gallons per day (150 gallons per apartment unit per 
day x 34 households). The Peoples Water Service Company has indicated that they have 
the capacity to service the developed property. A copy of the Peoples Water Service 
Company water availability letter in included in the “Supplemental Documents” section 
of this report. 

According to the information listed above, it is determined that the Peoples Water Service 
Company has the necessary capacity to provide potable water service to the developed 
site. However, any proposed development at the subject property would require the 
proper review and approval from the Peoples Water Service Company prior to service 
connection. 

4.4 Stormwater Management 
Stormwater management systems shall be designed, permitted and approved by all 
necessary regulatory agencies prior to development of the subject property. These 
agencies include (at a minimum) Escambia County, the Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection, the Florida Department of Transportation and the Northwest 



Florida Water Management District. Current regulations  require  the  site  to  obtain  
permitting  through  the  State  of  Florida’s Environmental Resource Permitting (ERP) 
program with design criteria that includes water quality and flood control devices which 
meet the current County and State requirements. The site stormwater system will be 
designed to attenuate a 100-yr storm event and treat the first 1” of runoff. 

The property owner shall obtain all necessary State and County permits for development 
prior to performing any proposed improvements to the site. 

4.5 Traffic 
The subject property includes approximately 502 feet of frontage along Navy Blvd and 
approximately 200 feet of frontage along Pinewood Lane. Access to the site shall be 
provided with a proposed connection to Pinewood Lane. Further review and analysis shall 
be required for the permitting of the future connection and the determination of any 
need for left/right turn lane additions. 

4.6 Recreation and Open Space 
Escambia County provides the community with a number of parks, recreation facilities 
and open spaces. The proposed FLUM amendment shall not exceed the capacity for such 
facilities however use of the existing County recreational facilities will be enjoyed by the 
residents of the proposed development.  

4.7 Schools 
The requested Future Land Use Map amendment would allow the same density of the 
existing property. The proposed development proposes 34 dwelling units which would 
generate a potential impact to Escambia County schools, however discussions with School 
Board officials revealed that schools within the County currently have the capacity for the 
proposed density. According to the Escambia County School District, the proposed project 
meets the level of service requirements of the Florida Statutes. A copy of the School 
District’s “Level of Service Determination” letter is included in the “Supplemental 
Documents” section of this report. 

4.8 Power 
Gulf Power has confirmed infrastructure and service available to the property to service 
development under the requested FLU categories. See letter from Gulf Power included in 
the “Supplemental Documents” section of this report. 

5. Environmental, Historical and Archeological 
Impacts 

Environmental impacts to the existing property shall be minimal.  The subject property size 
totals roughly 1.88 acres.   No known wellheads are located near the property.   Conversations 
with officials from both Escambia County and ECUA confirmed that no wellheads are in the 



project vicinity. According to officials, the closest limits to a known wellhead is 0.75 miles 
north northwest of the property. 

The portion of the site is developed with asphalt parking and one single story commercial 
building and a portion of the site is covered with sporadic trees. The site is currently used as 
a vacant commercial lot. The eastern property line of the site is Bayou Chico. A small dock is 
proposed.  

The State of Florida Division of Historical Resources was contacted regarding the subject 
property. A preliminary historic and archeological investigation revealed a standing structure 
on site with no significant bridges, sensitive areas or other items of historical significance on 
or near the property. The discovery of such items is highly unlikely in the region. A copy of 
the correspondence received from the Florida Master Site File is included in the 
“Supplemental Documents” portion of this report. 

6. Consistency with Comprehensive Plan 
The following discussion demonstrates that the proposed Future Land Use Map amendment 
is consistent with the adopted Escambia County Comprehensive Plan (2030). Applicable 
sections from the Comprehensive Plan have been included with responses following each 
section. 

GOAL CMS 1 CONCURRENCY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM:  Escambia County will adopt a 
Concurrency Management System to ensure that facilities and services needed to support 
development are available concurrent with the impacts of such development. The 
Concurrency Management System will be determined by the provisions of the LDC. 

RESPONSE: The proposed development is within the level of service provided by the 
County and the infrastructure will not be negatively impacted or degraded. In addition, 
the applicant understands the development must meet County standards concurrent with 
the CMS requirements. 

OBJ FLU 1.5: Sustainable Development - Escambia County will promote sustainable 
development by encouraging compact, mixed- and multi-use land use patterns. 

Policy FLU 1.5.2: Compact Development and Maximum Densities and Intensities - To 
ensure developments are designed to be compact and to accommodate travel mode 
choice, especially for short, local trips, the County will require minimum densities in the 
Mixed-Use-Suburban Future Land Use category and encourage the maximum densities 
and intensities in the Mixed Use-Urban Future Land Use category. 

RESPONSE: The Future Land Use Change request for the property is Mixed-Use Suburban 
(MU-S). The properties to the east (outside of those immediately adjacent to the property) 
are designated MU-U; therefore, compact development is continuing to be promoted in 
this region. In addition, the maximum densities are desired, on-site limit the development 
to 18.1 units per acre, 25 units per acre is allowed. 

Chapter 10: Infrastructure Element - The purpose of the Infrastructure Element is to provide 
guidance in the provision of services necessary to accommodate existing and future 



development in a way that is environmentally sensitive, efficient, and cost-effective. 
Included within this Element are goals, objectives and policies regarding potable water 
provision, wastewater treatment, solid waste disposal, stormwater management and 
aquifer protection. The adequate provision of these services is intended to promote orderly 
growth within areas best suited to accommodate development, protect sensitive natural 
resource systems and rural and agricultural areas, and preserve the public health, safety, 
and general welfare of Escambia County’s citizens. 

RESPONSE: The subject parcel is located in Escambia County. As proven in Section 4 of this 
report, the proposed FLUM amendment for the subject parcel meets the goals, objectives 
and policies regarding potable water, wastewater, solid waste, stormwater management, 
traffic, schools, and aquifer protection. See attached availability letters in the 
“Supplemental Documents” section of this report. 

OBJ CON 1.3: Surface Water Resources - Protect and improve the quality, biological health, 
and natural function of all surface water systems to preserve their ecological and aesthetic 
values. 

CON 1.3.1: Stormwater Management - Escambia County shall protect surface water 
quality by implementing the stormwater management policies of the Infrastructure 
Element to improve existing stormwater management systems and ensure the 
provision of stormwater management facilities concurrent with the demand for such 
facilities. 

RESPONSE: Stormwater management facilities shall be designed, permitted and approved 
by all necessary regulatory agencies prior to development of the subject property. These 
agencies include (at a minimum) Escambia County, the Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection and the Northwest Florida Water Management District. The 
property owner shall obtain all necessary State and County permits for development prior 
to performing any proposed improvements to the site. 

OBJ CON 1.4: Groundwater Resources - Protect and conserve the quality and quantity of 
groundwater resources to ensure public health and safety, adequate potable water 
supplies. 

CON 1.4.1: Wellhead Protection - Escambia County will provide comprehensive 
wellhead protection from potential adverse impacts to current and future public water 
supplies. The provisions will establish specific wellhead protection areas and address 
incompatible land uses, including prohibited activities and materials, within those 
areas. 

RESPONSE:   The subject parcel is located approximately three-quarters (0.75) of a mile 
from the nearest wellhead owned by ECUA. No wellhead impacts are anticipated. 

 
 

 



Prepared by: 
 
 

 
REBOL-BATTLE & ASSOCIATES, LLC. 

Civil Engineers & Surveyors 
 

FL Certificate of Authorization #9657 
 
2301 N 9th Avenue, Suite 300 
Pensacola, FL 32503 
850.438.0400 
 
www.rebol-battle.com 
 

 
SUPPLEMENTAL DOCUMENTS 
 
For 
 
Bayou Chico Development 
Parcel ID: 38-2S-30-3100-000-000 
Escambia County, Florida 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
March 2020 
 
 
 
 
Prepared for: 
Bayou Chico LLP 
c/o Kevin Hagen 
 
 
 
 
 
RBA Project No.: 2019.199 



SECTION “A” 
 

• Project Location 
• Existing Zoning Map 

• Existing Future Land Use Map 
• Proposed Future Land Use Map 

• Current Land Use Map 
• Surrounding Roads Map 

 
 





Project Location

Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin, USGS, Intermap, INCREMENT P, NRCan, Esri
Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), Esri Korea, Esri (Thailand), NGCC, (c)
OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community

polygonLayer
Override 1

polygonLayer
Override 1
County Outline

March 9, 2020

2020

0 1 20.5 mi

0 1.5 30.75 km

1:66,092

 

:

patrick
Callout
Project Location

patrick
Polygon



 

polygonLayer
Override 1
Map Grid

Property Line
March 9, 2020

0 0.05 0.10.025 mi

0 0.08 0.160.04 km

1:3,019

 
 



Existing Zoning Map

Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin, USGS, Intermap, INCREMENT P, NRCan, Esri
Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), Esri Korea, Esri (Thailand), NGCC, (c)
OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community

polygonLayer
Override 1

Streets
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
Parcels

March 9, 2020

2020

0 0.1 0.20.05 mi

0 0.2 0.40.1 km

1:8,262

 

:



Proposed Future Land Use

Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin, USGS, Intermap, INCREMENT P, NRCan, Esri
Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), Esri Korea, Esri (Thailand), NGCC, (c)
OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community

polygonLayer
Override 1

Streets
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
Parcels

March 9, 2020

2020

0 0.1 0.20.05 mi

0 0.2 0.40.1 km

1:8,262
:

patrick
Polygon

patrick
Text Box
MU-S



Existing Land Use

Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin, USGS, Intermap, INCREMENT P, NRCan, Esri
Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), Esri Korea, Esri (Thailand), NGCC, (c)
OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community

polygonLayer
Override 1

Streets
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD
Parcels

County Outline
March 9, 2020

2020

0 0.07 0.140.035 mi

0 0.1 0.20.05 km

1:4,131

 

:

blake
Text Box
Vacant Commercial

blake
Text Box
Multi-family <=9

blake
Text Box
Multi-family <=9

blake
Text Box
Single Family

blake
Text Box
AutoRepair

patrick
Callout
Auto Sales

blake
Text Box
Vacant Commercial

blake
Text Box
Open Storage

patrick
Callout
Office

blake
Text Box
Multi-family >=10

patrick
Line

patrick
Callout
SingleFamily

patrick
Callout
SingleFamily

patrick
Line

patrick
Line

patrick
Line

patrick
Line

patrick
Callout
Store



 

SECTION “B” 
 

Emerald Coast Utilities Authority 
(ECUA) 

Water and Sewer Availability Letter 
 
  







SECTION “C” 
 

Escambia County Schools Level of 
Service Determination 

(Source: Escambia County School District) 
 
  





SECTION “D” 
 

Power 
(Source: Gulf Power)



 
 
 
 
One Energy Place 
Pensacola, FL 32533-0047 
 
 
 
March 10th, 2020 
 
 
 
 
RE: Power availability 
 3611 Navy Blvd 
 Pensacola, FL 32502 
 
To whom it may concern: 
 
Gulf Power Company has electric facilities available at the property in question. There is 
sufficient capacity for three phase overhead or underground service. 
 
Though three phase power is available, there may be charges associated with service depending 
on qualifying load and type of service requested.  The service voltage and point of attachment 
will be determined upon receipt of final plat and electrical panel schedules. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact me at harolyn.gobert@nexteraenergy.com or 850-429-
2602. 
 
Sincerely, 

Harolyn R. Gobert 
 
Harolyn R. Gobert 
Electrical Engineer 
Power Delivery 
Gulf Power Company 
Pensacola, FL 
 
 
 

mailto:harolyn.gobert@nexteraenergy.com


 
 
 
 
 
 

SECTION “E” 
 

Historical & Archeological Data 
(Source: Florida Master Site File) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



500 South Bronough Street  •  Tallahassee, FL 32399-0250  •  www.flheritage.com/preservation/sitefile 
850.245.6440 ph    |    850.245.6439 fax    |    SiteFile@dos.state.fl.us 

 
 

 
 

 
This record search is for informational purposes only and does NOT constitute a 
project review. This search only identifies resources recorded at the Florida Master 
Site File and does NOT provide project approval from the Division of Historical 

Resources. Contact the Compliance and Review Section of the Division of Historical 
Resources at 850-245-6333 for project review information. 
 
 
 
 
March 9, 2020 
 
Patrick Hartman, EI 
Rebol-Battle & Associates, LLC 
Civil Engineers & Surveyors 
2301 N. 9th Avenue, Suite 300 
Pensacola, Florida 32503 
850.438.0400 (O); 850.438.0448 (F) 
patrickh@rebol-battle.com 
 
In response to your inquiry of March 9, 2020 the Florida Master Site File lists a standing structure 
recorded at 3611 NAVY BLVD., Pensacola, Florida.   
 
When interpreting the results of this search, please consider the following information: 
 
 This search area may contain unrecorded archaeological sites, historical structures 

or other resources even if previously surveyed for cultural resources. 
 

 Federal, State and local laws require formal environmental review for most 
projects.  This search DOES NOT constitute such a review. If your project falls 
under these laws, you should contact the Compliance and Review Section of the 
Division of Historical Resources at 850-245-6333. 

 
Please do not hesitate to contact us if you have any questions regarding the results of this search. 
 
Kind Regards, 

 
Eman M. Vovsi 
Data Base Analyst 
Florida Master Site File 
Eman.Vovsi@DOS.MyFlorida.com 
 
  
         





 
 
 

SECTION “F” 
 

Water Availability 
(Source: People’s Water Service) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 





Prepared by: 
 
 

 
REBOL-BATTLE & ASSOCIATES, LLC. 

Civil Engineers & Surveyors 
 

FL Certificate of Authorization #9657 
 
2301 N 9th Avenue, Suite 300 
Pensacola, FL 32503 
850.438.0400 
 
www.rebol-battle.com 
 

 
FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
(FLUM) AMENDMENT –  
Urban Sprawl 
 
For 
 
Bayou Chico Development 
Parcel ID: 38-2S-30-3100-000-000 
Escambia County, Florida 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
March 2020 
 
 
 
 
Prepared for: 
Bayou Chico LLP 
c/o Kevin Hagen 
 
 
 
 
 
RBA Project No.: 2019.199 



1. Introduction 
This report addresses the topic of “Urban Sprawl” for the Future Land Use Map (FLUM) 
Amendment request of Parcel Number 38-2S-30-3100-000-000 in Pensacola, Florida.  The 
existing FLUM designation for the property is Commercial (Com).  The desired FLUM 
Classification is Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S). 

2. General Property Information 
PROPERTY ADDRESS: 3611 Navy Blvd 

PARCEL ID #: 38-2S-30-3100-000-000 

INTENDED PROPERTY USE: Mixed-use Residential 

CURRENT ZONING: Commercial (Com) 

CURRENT FLU: Commercial (Com) 

PROPOSED FLU: Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S) 

The property is located at 3611 Navy Blvd in Escambia County, in the south eastern corner of 
the intersection of Navy Blvd and Pinewood Lane. The parcel includes approximately 1.88 
acres of property along the south side of Navy Blvd. Maps of the existing property are 
included in the “Supplemental Documents” section of this report. 
 

3. Urban Sprawl 
Urban Sprawl can be defined as a “development pattern characterized by low density, 
automobile- dependent development with uses that are not functionally related, requiring 
the extension of public facilities and services in an inefficient manner.” The purpose of this 
report is to prove that the proposed Future Land Use Map Amendment does not encourage 
the proliferation of urban sprawl as required by Florida Statute (F.S.) 163.3177. The preferred 
development pattern characteristics are listed and addressed below. 

Excerpt from F.S. 163.3177: 

(I) Directs or locates economic growth and associated land development to geographic 
areas of the community in a manner that does not have an adverse impact on and 
protects natural resources and ecosystems. 

The existing natural resources and ecosystems within the vicinity of the project shall be 
protected and not be negatively impacted as a result of the proposed residential 
development.  Public water and sewer systems are available at, or near, the site and 
will be connected to for service.  The site will not contain wells or septic systems which 
could impact natural resources. In addition, the ecosystems, specifically the wetland 
areas, located on the property shall be protected by the appropriate buffers required by 
the County and State for development. 



(II) Promotes the efficient and cost-effective provision or extension of public infrastructure 
and services. 

The proposed development is located along frontage of Navy Blvd.  No major public 
infrastructure “extension” would be required to support the site.   

(III) Promotes walkable and connected communities and provides for compact 
development and a mix of uses at densities and intensities that will support a range of 
housing choices and a multimodal transportation system, including pedestrian, 
bicycle, and transit, if available. 

The proposed residential subdivision shall provide for compact development and mixed 
densities/intensities.  The community shall be designed with low speed drive aisles and 
sidewalks. In addition, amenities of the development shall include recreational areas 
such as a park and/or clubhouse within a walkable distance.   

(IV) Promotes conservation of water and energy. 

As previously mentioned, public water and sewer systems are available at, or near, the 
site and will be connected to for service.  The site will not contain wells which could 
consume natural resources.   In addition, construction of the apartment complex shall 
be in accordance with the Florida Building and Plumbing Code which regulates energy 
conservation and protection of the potable water supply. 

(V) Preserves agricultural areas and activities, including silviculture, and dormant, unique, 
and prime farmlands and soils. 

N/A – Preservation agricultural areas and activities are not proposed. 

(VI) Preserves open space and natural lands and provides for public open space and 
recreation needs. 

The proposed residential development shall preserve areas of open space for 
recreational use. In addition, the existing waters-edge areas on the property shall be 
protected and conserved by including natural buffers in upland areas. 

(VII) Creates a balance of land uses based upon demands of the residential population for 
the nonresidential needs of an area. 

N/A – The proposed development includes only residential uses. 

(VIII) Provides uses, densities, and intensities of use and urban form that would remediate 
an existing or planned development pattern in the vicinity that constitutes sprawl or if 
it provides for an innovative development pattern such as transit-oriented 
developments or new towns as defined in s. 163.3164. 

N/A – The project doesn’t remediate an existing or planned development patterns. 

 

 

 



4. Conclusion 
The proposed residential development and Future Land Use Map Amendment does not 
encourage the proliferation of urban sprawl. This conclusion is based on the factors described 
above and summarized below as the development: 

• Shall protect the existing natural resources and ecosystems within the vicinity. 
• Promotes efficient development and shall provide for compact development and mixed 

densities/intensities. 
• Shall promote energy conservation and protection of the potable water supply. Shall 

preserve areas of open space and conserve natural lands. 





Comprehensive Plan 
Small-Scale Future Land Use Map Amendment 

Staff Analysis 

General Data 

Project Name:  SSA-2020-01 
Location:  3611 Navy Blvd. 
Parcel #:  38-2S-30-3100-000-000 
Acreage:  1.88 acres± 

Overlay:  Warrington Overlay (Warr-OL) 
FLU Request:  From Commercial (C) to Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S) 
Applicant:  Jason Rebol, Authorized Agent, Bayou Chico LLP, Owner  
         c/o Kevin Hagen 
Meeting Dates:  Planning Board, June 2, 2020 

 BCC, July 2, 2020 

Summary of Proposed Amendment: 
The small-scale amendment to the future land use (FLU) map of Escambia County 
proposes to change the FLU category of a vacant 1.88-acre parcel from Commercial (C) 
to Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S).  The zoning designation of the subject parcel is 
Commercial and is also within the Warrington Community Redevelopment Area. The 
parcel fronts approximately 502 feet of the west right-of-way of Navy Blvd, a major 
arterial street connecting to S. Pinewood Ln., a local street. 
A FLU change to MU-S will allow residential development within the existing zoning 
district regardless of a primary commercial component as currently required by the 
existing Commercial FLU.  The existing and proposed future land use categories are 
described in Comprehensive Plan Policy FLU 1.3.1 and summarized as follows: 

Commercial.  “Intended for professional office, retail, wholesale, service and general 
business trade.  Residential development may be permitted only if secondary to a 
primary commercial development.”  The range of allowable uses is “residential, retail 
and services, professional office, light industrial, recreational facilities, public and 
civic.”  The FLU has a maximum residential density of 25 du/acre and a maximum 
floor area ratio (FAR) of 1.0. 
Mixed-Use Suburban.  “Intended for a mix of residential and non-residential uses 
while promoting compatible infill development and the separation of urban and 
suburban land uses within the category as a whole.”  The range of allowable uses 
is “residential, retail and services, professional office, recreational facilities, public 
and civic limited agriculture.”  The FLU has a maximum residential density of 25 
du/acre and a maximum floor area ratio (FAR) of 1.0. 



Warrington Overlay District.  “District establishes supplemental land use 
regulations to support the objectives of the adopted Warrington area community 
redevelopment plan.  The intent of the additional land use controls is to enhance 
the character of an area undergoing revitalization, especially along those 
commercial corridors that provide primary access or gateways to the adjoining 
military installations within the Warrington area. 

Land Development Code FLU map amendment requirements 
Sec. 2-7.3 (e) Comprehensive Plan map amendments 
(3) Compliance review.   

a. General amendment conditions.  All amendments to the Comprehensive Plan 
shall demonstrate the following general conditions, allowing that where an 
amendment is imposed by a state or federal requirement it need only 
demonstrate the conditions to the greatest extent practicable under that 
requirement: 
1. Need and benefit.  There is an identified land use need particular to the 

scope and function of the Comprehensive Plan for which an amendment is 
clearly warranted. 
Analysis: In an application letter to the Board, the applicant stated that “since 
no commercial component is proposed, a FLU category more appropriate for 
multi-family developments is requested” and that “this request is a less 
intensive category than exists currently.” 
The requested FLU change would remove the Commercial FLU-based 
restriction on the subject parcel that allows residential development only when 
secondary to commercial development.  This FLU change would allow a 
maximum residential density of 25 dwelling units per acre to be obtained. 

2. Professional practices.  The proposed amendment applies contemporary 
planning principles, engineering standards, and other professional practices 
to provide an effective and efficient remedy for the identified land use problem 
or need. 
Analysis:  The amendment proposes a replacement FLU that allows the 
residential density of the existing COM zoning at 25 du/acre while remaining 
consistent with surrounding property.  With MU-U as the existing future land 
use of parcels located to the west (outside of those immediately adjacent to 
the property), the proposed change of the current FLU would be more 
appropriate of the subject parcel. 

b. FLUM amendment conditions.  In addition to the general amendment 
conditions, a future land use map amendment shall be based upon analyses 
[required] by Florida Statute. 
Analysis: The proposed amendment complies with all three conditions 
established by Florida Statutes, §163.3187(1), for the adoption of any small-scale 



comprehensive plan amendment:  
(a) The subject 1.88-acre parcel is a use of 10 acres or fewer. 
(b) The proposed amendment does not involve a text change to the 

Comprehensive Plan, but only proposes a land use change to the Future 
Land Use Map for a site-specific small-scale development activity. 

(c) The property that is the subject of the proposed amendment is not within a 
designated area of critical state concern. 

Other applicable Comprehensive Plan objectives and policies 
1. Housing 

Policy HOU 1.1.1 Residential Areas.  The Escambia County FLUM and zoning 
maps will identify areas suitable for residential development and/or redevelopment. 
Analysis:  The proposed MU-S replacement of the existing Commercial FLU will 
allow site development to achieve the maximum residential density. The existing 
COM zoning is primarily intended to “allow more diverse and intense commercial 
uses than the neighborhood commercial allowed within the mixed-use districts.” 
Residential uses are allowed.  

2. Future Land Use 
OBJ FLU 1.3 Future Land Use Map Designations 
Designate land uses on the FLUM to discourage urban sprawl, promote mixed use, 
compact development in urban areas, and support development compatible with the 
protection and preservation of rural areas. 
Analysis:  Although the site-specific requirement for residential development to be 
secondary to commercial would be lost in the proposed FLU change, MU-S would 
otherwise promote mixed use development generally within the urban area around 
the subject parcel. 

3. Infrastructure  
Policy HOU 1.1.4 Adequate infrastructure.  To assure the sustainability of 
residential communities, Escambia County will require new residential development 
to locate where adequate infrastructure is available. 
GOAL CMS 1 Concurrency Management System 
Escambia County will adopt a Concurrency Management System to ensure that 
facilities and services needed to support development are available concurrent with 
the impacts of such development. The Concurrency Management System will be 
determined by the provisions of the LDC. 

a. Potable Water.   
Policy INF 4.1.6 Developer Responsibility.  The cost of water line extensions 
made necessary by new development will be the responsibility of the developer 
unless otherwise funded by the service provider. 



Policy INF 4.1.7 Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  The LOS standard for 
potable water service within Escambia County will be 250 gallons per residential 
connection per day. For non-residential uses, the LOS requirements will be based 
upon an Equivalent Residential Connection (ERC) to be calculated by the service 
provider at the time of application. Escambia County will continue to work with the 
water providers to ensure that adequate capacity is available. 
Analysis: The application included documentation confirming available potable 
water source, treatment, pumping, and distribution to the proposed development 
from the Peoples Water Service Company system.  Development of the subject 
parcel would be an efficient use of the available water infrastructure     

b. Sanitary Sewer.   
Policy INF 1.1.7 Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  Average LOS standard for 
wastewater service is 210 gallons per residential connection per day, and the 
peak LOS will be 350 gallons per residential connection per day. For 
nonresidential uses, the LOS requirements will be based upon an Equivalent 
Residential Connection (ERC), as may be recalculated by the service provider 
from time to time, and on the size of the nonresidential water meter. Escambia 
County will continue to work with the water providers to ensure that adequate 
capacity is available. 
Policy INF 1.1.11 Required New Service Connection.  All new structures 
intended for human occupancy will connect to the ECUA wastewater system 
unless ECUA has determined that it is not feasible to provide wastewater service 
to the proposed structures.  Those structures not required to connect to the 
ECUA wastewater system will not be issued a building permit until the applicant 
has obtained the appropriate permit from the Health Department. 
Analysis: The application included documentation confirming available sanitary 
sewer to the proposed development from the ECUA system at the county’s 
adopted LOS.  Development of the parcel would be an efficient use of the 
available sewer infrastructure. 

c. Solid Waste Disposal.   
Policy INF 2.1.2 Perdido Landfill Operation.  Escambia County will provide 
and operate the Perdido Landfill so as to accommodate the municipal solid waste 
disposal needs of the entire County. 
Policy INF 2.1.4 Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  The LOS standard for 
solid waste disposal will be 6 pounds per capita per day. 
Analysis:  Escambia County continues to maintain its adopted solid waste LOS 
commitments.  The Department of Waste Services reported in its 2018 solid 
waste LOS analysis that the current build-out for disposal at the Perdido Landfill 
will provide solid waste disposal capacity through 2045. 

d. Stormwater Management. 



Policy INF 3.1.5 Concurrency Management.  Escambia County will ensure the 
provision of stormwater management facilities concurrent with the demand for 
such facilities as created by development or redevelopment through 
implementation of the Concurrency Management System. 
Policy INF 3.1.6 Developer Responsibilities.  Installation of stormwater 
management facilities made necessary by new development will be the 
responsibility of the developer. 
Analysis: Compliance with adopted stormwater management provisions that 
implement these policies would be reviewed and confirmed prior to any site 
development plan approval, regardless of the proposed FLU change or use.  

e. Transportation and Mobility.   
Policy MOB 1.1.2 On-site Facilities.  All new private development will be 
required to provide safe and convenient on-site traffic flow as indicated in the 
LDC.  
Policy MOB 1.1.7 Access Management.  Escambia County will promote access 
management by limiting the number of conflict points that a motorist experiences 
during travel, separating conflict points as much as possible when they cannot be 
eliminated, and controlling the turning movements to facilitate traffic flow on 
affected roadways.  
Analysis: Compliance with adopted on-site traffic flow and access management 
provisions that implement these policies would be reviewed and confirmed prior 
to any site development plan approval, regardless of the proposed FLU change 
or use. The subject parcel is located along an existing major arterial street (Navy 
Blvd) connecting to a local street (S Pinewood Ln). Development of the parcel 
would be an efficient use of the available transportation infrastructure. 

4. Protected Resources.  It appears likely, especially given the limited impacted 
resources and unchanged HC/LI zoning, that the proposed FLU change will result in 
no greater adverse impacts to protected resources. 

a. Wellheads.   
Policy CON 1.4.1 Wellhead Protection. Escambia County shall provide 
comprehensive wellhead protection from potential adverse impacts to current 
and future public water supplies. The provisions shall establish specific wellhead 
protection areas and address incompatible land uses, including prohibited 
activities and materials, within those areas. 
Analysis: Compliance with adopted wellhead protection provisions that 
implement this policy would be reviewed and confirmed prior to any site 
development plan approval, regardless of the proposed FLU change or use. 

b. Historically Significant Sites.   
Policy FLU 1.2.1 State Assistance.  Escambia County shall utilize all available 
resources of the Florida Department of State, Division of Historical Resources in the 



identification of archaeological and/or historic sites or structures within the County.  The 
County will utilize guidance, direction and technical assistance received from this 
agency to develop provisions and regulations for the preservation and protection of 
such sites and structures. In addition, the County 
 

will utilize assistance from this agency together with other sources, such as the 
University of West Florida, in identifying newly discovered historic or 
archaeological resources. The identification will include an analysis to determine 
the significance of the resource. 
Analysis:  The application indicated that an “historical impact analysis is applied 
for,” but included no documentation of a request made to or response received 
from the Florida Master Site File, Division of Historical Resources regarding 
whether there are any previously recorded resources within the subject parcel.  

c. Wetlands and Habitat. 
Policy CON 1.1.2 Wetland and Habitat Indicators.  Escambia County has 
adopted and will use the National Wetlands Inventory Map, the Escambia County 
Soils Survey, and the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission’s 
(FFWCC) LANDSAT imagery as indicators of the potential presence of wetlands 
or listed wildlife habitat in the review of applications for development approval. 
Analysis: There are no indications from the available National Wetlands 
Inventory map that wetlands are within the subject parcel.  Compliance with 
adopted environmental provisions that implement this policy would be reviewed 
and confirmed prior to any site development plan approval, regardless of the 
proposed FLU change or use. 

d. Urban Forest. 
Policy CON 1.6.4 Urban Forest Management.  Escambia County will, through 
LDC provisions and other measures, sustain and promote the urban forest.  
Analysis: Compliance with adopted tree protection and landscaping provisions 
that implement this policy would be reviewed and confirmed prior to any site 
development plan approval, regardless of the proposed FLU change or use. 

 



3363 WEST PARK PLACE • PENSACOLA, FLORIDA  32505 • 850-595-3404 • 850-595-3405 (FAX) 

 BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  Andrew Holmer, Division Manager 

Development Services Department 
 
FROM: Terri V. Malone, AICP, Transportation Planner 
  Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 
 
DATE: May 20, 2020 
 
RE: Transportation & Traffic Operations (TTO) Comments – SSA 2020-1 

3611 Navy Boulevard 
 

TTO Staff has reviewed the Rezoning Case SSA 2020-1 3611 Navy Boulevard (COM to 
MU-S), agenda item for the Planning Board meeting scheduled for June 1, 2020. Please see the 
below comments. 

 
Navy Boulevard is a four-lane roadway with turn lanes and paved shoulders. Near the 

parcel in question, the traveling roadway width is approximately 80 feet with a right-of-way width 
of 196 feet.   

 
The Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) is conducting a Project Development 

and Environmental (PD&E) study of a “Complete Streets” type upgrade of this roadway. The 
PD&E is scheduled for completion in late summer 2020. The County does not have any project 
scheduled for this roadway. 

 
Per the Florida-Alabama TPO’s Congestion Management Process Plan, Navy 

Boulevard is classified as a Principal Arterial with a Maximum LOS of D and a 
corresponding daily volume threshold of 39,800.  The daily traffic on this road was 
recorded as 19,700 for year 2019. 

 
TTO’s review is solely based off the application submittal packet, so the comments 

above hold no bearing on any future TTO comments during the Development Review process. 
  

cc: Horace Jones, Development Services Department Director 
Joy Jones, P.E., Engineering Department Director 
Christine Fanchi, P.E., Transportation and Traffic Operations Division 

 Allyson Lindsay, Development Services Department 



LEGAL REVIEW

(COUNTY DEPARTMENT USE ONLY)

Documeni: SSA 2020-01 Ordinance

Date:

Date requested back by: 5/06/20

Allyson Cain
Requested by:

.  595-3547
Phone Number:

llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllillllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllillliill

(LEGAL USE ONLY)

Legal Review by,

Date Received:

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency.

Not approved.

Make subject to legal signoff.

Additional comments:



1  ORDINANCE NUMBER 2020-
2

3

4  AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING PART II OF THE
5  ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY
6  COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 2030, AS AMENDED; AMENDING CHAPTER 7, "THE
7  FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT," POLICY FLU 1.1.1, TO PROVIDE FOR AN
8  AMENDMENT TO THE 2030 FUTURE LAND USE MAP, CHANGING THE FUTURE
9  LAND USE CATEGORY OF A PARCEL WITHIN SECTION 38, TOWNSHIP 2S, RANGE
10 30W, PARCEL NUMBER 3100-000-000, TOTALING 1.88 (+/-) ACRES, LOCATED ON
11 NAVY BLVD, FROM COMMERCIAL (C) TO MIXED USE SUBURBAN (MU-S)
12 PROVIDING FOR A TITLE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR
13 INCLUSION IN THE CODE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

14

15 WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, Florida Statutes, Escambia County adopted
16 its Comprehensive Plan on April 29, 2014; and
17

18 WHEREAS, Chapter 125, Florida Statutes, empowers the Board of County
19 Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida to prepare, amend and enforce
20 comprehensive plans for the development of the County; and
21

22 WHEREAS, the Escambia County Planning Board conducted a public hearing and
23 forwarded a recommendation to the Board of County Commissioners to consider changes
24 (amendments) to the Comprehensive Plan; and
25

26 WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida finds that
27 the adoption of this amendment is in the best interest of the County and its citizens;
28

29 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of County Commissioners of
30 Escambia County, Florida, as follows:
31

32 Section 1. Purpose and Intent
33

34 This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and to exercise the
35 authority set out in, the Community Planning Act, Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215,
36 Florida Statutes.

37

38 Section 2. Title of Comprehensive Plan Amendment
39

40 This Comprehensive Plan amendment shall be entitled - "Small Scale Amendment 2020-
41 01."

42

43

44

Page 1



1  Section 3. Changes to the 2030 Future Land Use Map
2

3  The 2030 Future Land Use Map, as adopted by reference and codified In Part II of the
4  Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan: 2030,
5  as amended: Chapter 7, "Future Land Use Element," Policy FLU 1.1.1; and all notations,
6  references and information shown thereon, is further amended to include the following
7  future land use changes:
8

9  A parcel within Section 38, Township 28, Range 30W, parcel number 3100-
10 000-000, totaling 1.88 (+/-) acres, located on Navy Blvd, as more
11 particularly described in the Boundary Survey description produced by
12 Northwest Florida Land Surveying, registered land surveyor Fred R.
13 Thompson dated 9/24/2019, attached as Exhibit A, from Commercial (C) to
14 Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S).

15 Section 4. Severability
16

17 If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or
18 unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, the holding shall in no way affect
19 the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.
20

21 Section 5. Inclusion in the Code

22

23 It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this
24 Ordinance shall be codified as required by Section 125.68, Florida Statutes, and that the
25 sections, subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or
26 relettered and the word "ordinance" may be changed to "section," "article," or such other
27 appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions.
28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35 INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

Page 2



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

Section 6. Effective Date

Pursuant to Section 163.3184(3)(c), Florida Statutes, this Ordinance shall not become effective
until 31 days after adoption. If challenged within 30 days after adoption, this Ordinance shall not
become effective until the State Planning Agency or the Administration Commission enters a final
order determining the Ordinance to be in compliance,

DONE AND ENACTED this day of. 2020.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

ATTEST:

By:

RAM CHILDERS

CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT

By:
Deputy Clerk

(SEAL)

Steven Barry, Chairman

This document approved as to form
and legal sufficiency.

Oate '

ENACTED:

FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE:

EFFECTIVE DATE:

Page 3



   
Planning Board-Regular   7. A.           
Meeting Date: 06/01/2020  

Agenda Item:
Lot of Record Date Change Discussion.

Attachments
2007 Ordinance and Recommendation
Draft Ordinance



2007—0010130 BCC
Aug. 15, 2007 Page 1

THE DOCUMENT WAS RECEIVED AND SHOWN ON PAGES 9-13.

THE FOLLOWING WAS NOT PROVIDED TO THE CLERK’S OFFICE:

ORDINANCE ADOPTED AT THE 5:45 PM PUBLIC HEARING WHICH HAS
NOT YET BEEN RETURNED FROM THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF
STATE



2007 —- .0 .‘l. 0130 BCC BCC 08—016-2007
Aug. 16, 2007 Page 2

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
Escambia County, Florida

DEPARTMENT: Planning and Zoning

FROM: T. Lloyd Kerr, AICP, Director
Planning and Zoning

DATE: August 6, 2007

RE: 5:45 pm. — Thursday, August 16, 2007 Public Hearing - Article 2
"Administration”, Article 3 “Definitions", Article 6 "Zoning Districts,”
and Article 7 “Performance Standards” as related to the Effective
Date for a Lot of Record

RECOMMENDATION: That the Board adopt an ordinance to the Land Development
Code (LDC); Amending the following: Article 2 "Administration” Section 2.10.01 .0,
Article 3 “Definitions” Section 3.00.01, Article 6 "Zoning Districts” Section 6.04.08, and
Article 7 “Performance Standards" Section 7.13.03.C, to change the effective date for a
lot of record from October 8, 1990 to February 8, 1996.

BACKGROUND:

The Planning Board first discussed the “Lot of Record” issue at a June 25, 2003
workshop. At the October 15, 2003 regular meeting, the Board rendered an
interpretation accepting the Article 3 definition of a lot of record, with respect to an
effective date of October 8, 1990, and directed staff to prepare an ordinance to change
the date wherever necessary in the LDC. Subsequently, the BCC adopted Ordinance
2004-13, reflecting those changes, on March 8, 2004.

Due to the continuing difficulty involved with validating lots of record, staff brought this
issue before the Planning Board again at the June 25, 2007 workshop. After
discussion, the Board directed staff to prepare an ordinance changing the effective date
for a lot of record from October 8, 1990 to February 8, 1996, the date the LDC
(Ordinance 96-3) became effective with the State. The Planning Board recommended
approval to the BCC on July 9, 2007.

As the old microfiche maps continue to deteriorate to an almost unreadable state, the
October 8, 1990 date becomes less viable in making a lot of record determination.
Since it is estimated that the cost to digitize the older files could be $100,000 or more,
the most cost-effective way to validate a lot of record would be to use a date that can be
verified by the earliest digital property maps available from the Property Appraiser,
those of 1996.

‘wowttrManagM‘

d
5245 Lot of Recor

BCC Meeting 08—16-2007



2007~001®30 BCC
Aug. 16, 2007 Page 3

BCC 08—016-07
Re: Articles 2. 3, 6, & 7 Lot of Record
August 6, 2007
Page 2 of 2
BUDGETARY IMPACT:

No budgetary impacts are anticipated by the adoption of this ordinance.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONIfiiN-OFF:

The attached ordinance has been reviewed and approved for legal sufficiency by Alison
P. Rogers, Deputy County Attorney. Any recommended legal comments are attached
herein.

PERSONNEL:

No additional personnel are required to implement this ordinance.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR §OAR_D ACTIOMDISCUSSAON:

The proposed ordinance is consistent with the Board’s goal “to increase citizen
involvement in, access to, and approval of, County government activities.” Any
recommended changes to the LDC pertaining to this ordinance will be forwarded to the
BCC for approval.

IMPLEMENTATION REQUIREMENTS:

Implementation of this ordinance will consist of an amendment to the LDC and
distribution of a copy of the adopted ordinance to interested citizens and all staff.

QQORDINATION WITH (in-ER ILQENCIESIPERSONS:

The proposed amendment was prepared in cooperation with the County Attorney’s
Office and the Planning and Zoning Department will insure proper advertisement.

ty ministrator

TLKzJBzdt

Attachments:

H:\PZ\BCC 2007\GMR\Supporting documents\5—45Rec lot of record.doc



\O
O

O
\)

O
\U

l-
I>

U
J
I\

)v
-d

2007—0010230 BCC
Aug. 15. 2.07 Page 4 DRAFT

ORDINANCE NO. 2007-

AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING
PART III OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES
(1999), THE LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY,
FLORIDA, AS AMENDED; AMENDING THE FOLLOWING SECTIONS 4
TO CHANGE THE EFFECTIVE DATE FOR A LOT OF RECORD FROM
OCTOBER 8, 1990 TO FEBRUARY 8, 1996: ARTICLE 2
“ADMINISTRATION” SECTION 2.10.01 .D, ARTICLE 3 “DEFINITIONS"
SECTION 3.00.01, ARTICLE 6 “ZONING DISTRICTS” SECTION
6.04.08, AND ARTICLE 7 “PERFORMANCE STANDARDS” SECTION
7.13.03.C; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR
INCLUSION ON THE CODE AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE
DATE. »

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA: ‘

Section 1. Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances (1999) the Land
Development Code of Escambia County, Article 2, “Administration" Section 2.10.01.D is
hereby amended as follows (words underlined are additions and words stricken are
deletions):

2. 10.01. General modifications.

A. Yard encroachment including roof overhang. Every part of a required yard shall
be open from its lowest point to the sky unobstructed, except for the ordinary
projection of sills, belt courses, cornices, buttresses, awnings, eaves and similar
features approved by the County BOA. None of the above projections shall
project into any yard more than 24 inches, except roof overhangs and awnings
which may extend 48 inches into any yard provided the respective yard is at least
ten feet in depth. In no case shall a structure project into a public right-of—way
without prior approval by the BCC.

B. Projecting fire escapes, stairways, balconies, chimneys, or flues. Open or
enclosed fire escapes, outside stainivays and balconies projecting into a
minimum yard not more than three and one-half feet and the ordinary projections
of chimneys and flues may be permitted by the Building Official where the same
do not obstruct light and ventilation.

C. Distance between buildings on same lot. As specified in the Zoning District
regulations, more than one dwelling may be located upon a lot provided that the
horizontal open space between such buildings measured at the closest point
shall not be less than twice the side yard required in the district in which such
uses are located.

Page 1 of 5

_Ar1jc|e§9' '1' 6' & 7 Lot of Record (BCC 08-16-07)
Draft 1A W???

5:45 Lot of Record
BCC Meeting 08-16—2007



#
W

N
"

H
O

W
O

O
N

Q
U

I

13'
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44

2007~00103® BCC
Aug. 16, 20.7 Page 5

DRAFT
D. Use of lots less than required size. Any lot of record as of OetebeFB—WQQ-

whieh February 8 1996 that contains less land area depth or width than is
required in the district in which such lot is located, may be used for the uses
permitted in such district.

E. Sanitary waste disposal. Whenever a lot is not sewed by an approved sewer,
there must be provided such open space as required by F.A.C. ch. 10-D(6)
(septic tank regulations) of the Florida Administrative Code and as administered
by the Escambia County Health Unit for septic tanks with flows of up to 5,000
gallons per day and drainage field to serve the uses erected on such lot. Such
sanitary installation may be located in a front, side or rear yard but not closer
than five feet to any lot line.

F. Density Rounding. When the calculated density for a parcel of land results in a
fraction greater than or equal to 0.5, rounding to the next whole number shall be
allowed up to a maximum of one additional dwelling unit per parcel.

Section 2. Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances (1999) the Land
Development Code of Escambia County, Article 3, “Definitions" Section 3.00.01 is
hereby amended as follows (words underlined are additions and words strieken are
deletions):

3. 00.01. Usage.

Lot of Record. A lot that is part of a subdivision that has been recorded in the official
records of Escambia County or a lot or parcel described by metes and bounds the
description of which has been so recorded or accepted on or before Grabber—84999
Februarv 8.1996 the effective date of this Code. In Article 11, A1rport/A1rfeld Environs
a lot of record for the purpose of constructing one single-family dwelling shall be a
parcel recorded on or prior to August 21, 2001. the effective date of adoption of the
Airfield/Airport Environs zoninq map overlav zones.

Section 3. Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances (1999) the Land
Development Code of Escambia County, Article 6, “Zoning Districts" Section 6.04.08 is
hereby amended as follows (words underlined are additions and words stricken are
deletions):

6.04.08. Previously existing lots. This Code shall not be construed to prevent the
construction of a single-family dwelling on any lot which that was a lot of record as of
ember-8,4999 Februam'B, 1996, although such lot of record may have a lesser area
or width than required in the district in which it is located.

Section 4. Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances (1999) the Land
Development Code of Escambia County, Article 7, "Performance Standards" Section
7.13.03.C is hereby amended as follows (words underlined are additions and words
stricken are deletions):

Page 2 of 5

ArticleslrarfimtfiecmrdLB‘CC 08—16—07)
Draft 1A



H O
K

O
O

O
Q

O
N

U
‘I
A

U
’N

—
I

A
h

h
b

b
4

>
b

w
w

w
w

w
w

w
w

w
w

N
N

N
N

N
N

N
N

N
N

I—
‘l
—

‘t
—

‘r
—

‘H
H

H
t—

‘F
‘

O
N

E
/\

A
W

N
H

O
O

O
O

Q
Q

U
’I
-b

W
N

H
O

O
O

O
Q

O
N

U
I-

D
W

N
i—

‘O
Q

O
O

Q
C

h
M

-D
W

N
H

2007—0010130 BCC
Aug. 16, 2007 Page 6 DRAFT

7.13.03. Protection standards. As a minimum, the following performance standards
apply to the protection of wetlands and threatened and endangered species. These
performance standards shall be achieved through a review and permitting process. No
detrimental activities that may cause negative impacts to natural resources shall occur
in wetlands or threatened and endangered species habitat until all required federal,
state, and local permits have been issued. Where United States Army Corps of
Engineers Nationwide Permits (NWP) 14 and 39 are applicable, Escambia County will
accept the permit as being issued after verification that the 45-day response period has
elapsed, as long as the applicant can provide documentation that a complete
application was filed with the Army Corps of Engineers. A complete application is one
that provides all the information required under federal law, including a Pre—Construction
Notification. Additional protection standards may be promulgated and/or imposed by
state or federal regulatory agencies, the Director, and/or the' Board, in the event that it is
determined that an additional standard(s) is appropriate and required to protect the
functions of the wetlands or sensitive environmental resources:

A. , Untreated runoff channeled directly into water bodies or wetlands is prohibited.

B. Development and construction techniques shall be compatible with the soil
conditions that are specific to the site. If deemed necessary, the Director shall
require soil borings and tests conducted by a licensed testing facility.

C. The natural functions of wetlands and threatened and endangered species
' habitat shall be protected. If a person proposes to impact wetlands and

threatened and endangered species habitat, then he or she shall deliver to the
County an application which will provide written documentation to demonstrate
that impacts to wetlands and threatened and endangered species habitat have
been avoided to the maximum extent possible. If impacts are unavoidable, the
applicant shall demonstrate that impacts to wetlands and threatened and

. endangered species habitat have been minimized to the maximum extent
possible. if the applicant has demonstrated adequate minimization of
unavoidable impacts, then, and only then, the applicant may submit a mitigation
plan for review and consideration. Development in wetlands shall not be allowed
unless sufficient uplands do not exist to avoid a taking. In this case,
development shall be restricted to allow residential density use at a maximum
density of one unit per five acres, or to the density established by the future land
use map containing the parcel, whichever is more restrictive, or one unit per lot of
record as of Geteber—SASQO Februam 8, 1996, if the lot of record is less than
five acres in size. Lots of record do not include contiguous multiple lots under
single ownership.

Mitigation will be allowed only when avoidance of any adverse degradation of the
function of wetlands, or threatened and endangered species habitat, during
development can not be achieved through modifications to the proposed
development such as clustering, vertical development and the like. ‘Mitigation
procedures are required in any case where development degrades estuaries,

Page30f 5

Articles 2. 3. 6. & 7 Lot of Record (300 08-16-07)
Gretem Report

_d__
5:45 Lot of Recor

BCC Meeting 08-16-2007
Draft 1A



._
. O

W
O

O
M

Q
U

I-
D

-U
J
N

H

I
4

:
4

5
.
4

1
-
b

u
t
.
»

w
m

w
w

w
w

w
w

N
N

M
N

N
N

N
N

N
N

H
H

p
-
H

H
H

H
M

H
W

N
l—

‘O
W

O
O

H
O

‘l
k
h

-b
w

w
t—

‘O
W

O
O

‘J
Q

L
h

-D
W

N
v
—

‘O
W

O
O

N
m

m
-h

b
-J

N
H

2007—0310130 BCC
Au . 16. 2067 Page 7- 9 DRAFT

wetlands, bayous, harbors, rivers, surface waters, submerged aquatic vegetation,
and threatened and endangered species habitat. Degradation means any
modifications, alterations, or effects on waters, wetlands, surface areas, species
composition, or usefulness for human or natural uses which are or may
potentially be harmful or injurious to human health, welfare, safety or property, to
biological productivity, species diversity, or ecosystem stability which
unreasonably interferes with the functions and values of natural resources on the
property, including outdoor recreation. Degradation shall also include secondary
or cumulative impacts to offsite wetlands and threatened and endangered
species habitat in the watershed. The minimum 30-foot buffer requirement
(7.13.03.N) will satisfy the County’s secondary impact concerns.

Mitigation usually consists of measures that compensate for, or enhance, the
aspects of the project that do not otherwise meet permitting criteria or to
compensate for unavoidable natural resource losses. It may include purchase,
creation, restoration, and/or enhancement of wetlands, performing works or
modification that causes a net improvement in water quality or aquatic habitat, or
enhancement of the hydrology of wetland areas that have been altered,
impounded or drained. Before considering mitigation, all reasonable measures
must first be taken to avoid and minimize the adverse impacts to natural
resources which otherwise rendered the project unpermittable. Compensatory
mitigation, by which wetlands and threatened and endangered species habitat
are purchased, created, enhanced and/or-restored to compensate for the loss of
such lands, should be of the same type, or should replace the same functions
and values, as that destroyed or degraded.

The applicant for development approval shall submit to the County copies of any
applicable local, State and Federal applications, permits, authorizations, letters of
exemption, or statements prior to review by the County if activities conducted
pursuant to such County issued permit would impact any natural resource
requiring mitigation under this section. The County’s mitigation provisions and
standards are primary.

The County shall establish a system for mitigation banking or an in-lieu fee
program, to be accepted by the USACOE and the FDEP, whereby the applicant
may financially contribute to a fund to purchase or restore wetlands and
environmentally sensitive lands. (Ord. No. 97-51, Section 1, 10-2-1997)

This area intentionally left blank

Page 4 of 5

Articles 2, 3, 6, & 7 Lot of Record (BCC 08—16-07)
Draft 1A



H
.

o
x
o

o
o

u
o

x
m

n
w

w
i-
d

h
-
b

-
b

-
I
:
w

w
w

w
w

w
w

w
w

m
N

N
N

N
N

N
N

N
N

N
H

H
H

H
H

H
H

H
H

L
u

N
H

o
x
o

o
o

-
q

O
x
m

-
tH

o
x
o

o
o

-
‘l
o

x
u

x
h

w
m

w
o

m
o

o
-
q

o
x
m

h
w

[O
r
—

-
45

-5
-5

m
un

-l:
2007—0010130 BCC DRAFT

. .. A . 16 2007 Page 8
Section 5. Severabrlity. “9 '

It is declared the intent of the Board of County Commissioners that if any
subsection, clause, sentence, provision or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid
or unconstitutional by a Court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or
unconstitutionality shall not be so construed as to render invalid or unconstitutional the
remaining provisions of this Ordinance.

Section 6. Inclusion in the Code.

It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of
this Ordinance shall become and be made a part of the Escambia County Code; and
that the sections of this Ordinance may be renumbered or relettered and the word
“ordinance" may be changed to “section,” “article," or such other appropriate word or
phrase in order to accomplish such intentions.

Section 7. Effective Date.

This Ordinance shall become effective upon its filing with the Department of
State.

DONE AND ENACTED this day of , 2007.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

By:
Kevin W. White, Chairman

ATTEST: ERNIE LEE MAGAHA
Clerk of the Circuit Court

By:
Deputy Clerk

(SEAL)

ENACTED:

FILED WITH DEPARTMENT OF STATE:

EFFECTIVE:
HtIJkNNING BD\2007\LDC Ordinances\Art 2, 3, 6, & 7 Lot of Record\PB 07-09-07\0rdinance.doc

Page 5 of 5

Articles 2, 3, 6, & 7 Lot of Record (800 08—16—07)

Draft 1A
“GrowthManagemenLReportc_

5:45 Lot of Record
BCC Meeting 08-16-2007



Escambia County
Clerk’s griglna!

Da
te:

5’«
3l—

§lo
o’)

Ve
rifi

ed
By

:
9.

05
00

1

2007—0010130 BCC
Aug. 16, 2007 Page 9

m ORDINANCE NO. 2007-_49_
AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING
PART III OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES
(1999), THE LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY,
FLORIDA, AS AMENDED; AMENDING THE FOLLOWING SECTIONS
TO CHANGE THE EFFECTIVE DATE FOR A LOT OF RECORD FROM
OCTOBER 3, 1990 TO FEBRUARY 8, 1996: ARTICLE 2
“ADMINISTRATION” SECTION 2.10.01.D, ARTICLE 3 “DEFINITIONS”
SECTION 3.00.01, ARTICLE 6 “ZONING DISTRICTS” SECTION
6.04.08, AND ARTICLE 7 “PERFORMANCE STANDARDS” SECTION
7.13.03.c; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR
INCLUSION ON THE CODE AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE
DATE.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA:

Section 1. Part III Of the Escambia County Code Of Ordinances (1999) the Land
Development Code Of Escambia County, Article 2, "Administration” Section 2.10.01 .D is
hereby amended as follows (words underlined are additions and words striekeh are
deletions):

2. 10.01. General modifications.

A. Yard encroachment including roof overhang. Every part Of a required yard shall
be Open from its lowest point to the sky unobstructed, except for the ordinary
projection of sills, belt courses, cornices, buttresses, awnings, eaves and similar
features approved by the County BOA. None Of the above projections shall
project into any yard more than 24 inches, except rOOf overhangs and awnings
which may extend 48 inches intO any yard provided the respective yard is at least
ten feet in depth In no case shall a structure project intO a public right--Of-way
without prior approval by the BCC.

Projecting fire escapes, stain/vays, balconies, chimneys, or flues. Open or
enclosed fire escapes, outside stairways and balconies projecting into a
minimum yard not more than three and one-half feet and the ordinary projections
Of chimneys and flues may be permitted by the Building Official where the same
dO not obstruct light and ventilation.

Distance between buildings on same lot. As Specified in the Zoning District
regulations, more than one dwelling may be located upon a lot provided that the
horizontal Open Space between such buildings measured at the closest point
Shall not be less than twice the side yard required in the district in which such
uses are located.

Use of lots less than required Size. Any lot Of record as Of Oeteber—«B—JIQQQ»,
which February 8,1996 that contains less land area depth or width than is

Page 1 of 5



2007—0010130 BCC
Aug. 16, 2007 Page 10

required in the district in which such lot is located, may be used for the uses
permitted in such district.

E. Sanitary waste disposal. Whenever a lot is not served by an approved sewer,
there must be provided such open space as required by F.A.C. ch. 10-D(6)
(septic tank regulations) of the Florida Administrative Code and as administered
by the Escambia County Health Unit for septic tanks with flows of up to 5,000
gallons per day and drainage field to serve the uses erected on such lot. Such
sanitary installation may be located in a front, side or rear yard but not closer
than five feet to any lot line.

F. Density Rounding. When the calculated density for a parcel of land results in a
fraction greater than or equal to 0.5, rounding to the next whole number shall be
allowed up to a maximum of one additional dwelling unit per parcel.

Section 2. Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances (1999) the Land
Development Code of Escambia County, Article 3, “Definitions” Section 3.00.01 is
hereby amended as follows (words underlined are additions and words strieken are
deletions):

3.00. 01. Usage.

Lot of Record. A lot that is part of a subdivision that has been recorded in the official
records of Escambia County or a lot or parcel described by metes and bounds, the
description of which has been so recorded or accepted on or before Camber—84999
February 8, 1996, the effective date of this Code. In Article 11, Airport/Airfield Environs
a lot of record for the purpose of constructing one single-family dwelling shall be a
parcel recorded on or prior to August 21, 2001, the effective date of adoption of the
Airfield/Airport Environs zoning map overlay zones.

Section 3. Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances (1999) the Land
Development Code of Escambia County, Article 6, “Zoning Districts” Section 6.04.08 is
hereby amended as follows (words underlined are additions and words strieken are
deletions):

6.04.08. Previous/y existing lots. This Code shall not be construed to prevent the
construction of a single—family dwelling on any lot whieh mat was a lot of record as of
Oetebes8—1990 Februam 8, 1996, although such lot of record may have a lesser area
or width than required in the district in which it is located.

Section 4. Part Ill of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances (1999) the Land
Development Code of Escambia County, Article 7, “Performance Standards” Section
7.13.03.C is hereby amended as follows (words underlined are additions and words
strieken are deletions):
7.73.03. Protection standards. As a minimum, the following performance standards
apply to the protection of wetlands and threatened and endangered species. These
performance standards shall be achieved through a review and permitting process. No
detrimental activities that may cause negative impacts to natural resources shall occur

Page 2 of 5



2.07-—00103. BCC
Aug. 16, 2907 Page 11

in wetlands or threatened and endangered species habitat until all required federal,
state, and local permits have been issued. Where United States Army Corps of
Engineers Nationwide Permits (NWP) 14 and 39 are applicable, Escambia County will
accept the permit as being issued after verification that the 45-day response period has
elapsed, as long as the applicant can provide documentation that a complete
application was filed with the Army Corps of Engineers. A complete application is one
that provides all the information required under federal law, including a Pre—Construction
Notification. Additional protection standards may be promulgated and/or imposed by
state or federal regulatory agencies, the Director, and/or the Board, in the event that it is
determined that an additional standard(s) is appropriate and required to protect the
functions of the wetlands or sensitive environmental resources:

A.

B.

Untreated runoff channeled directly into water bodies or wetlands is prohibited.

Development and construction techniques shall be compatible with the soil
conditions that are specific to the site. If deemed necessary, the Director shall
require soil borings and tests conducted by a licensed testing facility.

The natural functions of wetlands and threatened and endangered species
habitat shall be protected. If a person proposes to impact wetlands and
threatened and endangered species habitat, then he or she shall deliver to the
County an application which will provide written documentation to demonstrate
that impacts to wetlands and threatened and endangered species habitat have
been avoided to the maximum extent possible. If impacts are unavoidable, the
applicant shall demonstrate that impacts to wetlands and threatened and
endangered species habitat have been minimized to the maximum extent
possible. If the applicant has demonstrated adequate minimization of
unavoidable impacts, then, and only then, the applicant may submit a mitigation
plan for review and consideration. Development in wetlands shall not be allowed
unless sufficient uplands do not exist to avoid a taking. In this case,
development shall be restricted to allow residential density use at a maximum
density of one unit per five acres, or to the density established by the future land
use map containing the parcel, whichever is more restrictive, or one unit per lot of
record as of Camber—874999 Februam 8, 1996, if the lot of record is less than
five acres in size. Lots of record do not include contiguous multiple lots under
single ownership.

Mitigation will be allowed only when avoidance of any adverse degradation of the
function of wetlands, or threatened and endangered species habitat, during
development can not be achieved through modifications to the proposed
development such as clustering, vertical development and the like. Mitigation
procedures are required in any case where development degrades estuaries,
wetlands, bayous, harbors, rivers, surface waters, submerged aquatic vegetation,
and threatened and endangered species habitat. Degradation means any
modifications, alterations, or effects on waters, wetlands, surface areas, species
composition, or usefulness for human or natural uses which are or may
potentially be harmful or injurious to human health, welfare, safety or property, to

Page 3 of 5



2007—0010130 866
Aug. 16, 2067 Page 12

biological productivity, species diversity, or ecosystem stability which
unreasonably interferes with the functions and values of natural resources on the
property, including outdoor recreation. Degradation shall also include secondary
or cumulative impacts to offsite wetlands and threatened and endangered
species habitat in the watershed. The minimum 30-foot buffer requirement
(7.13.03.N) will satisfy the County’s secondary impact concerns.

Mitigation usually consists of measures that compensate for, or enhance, the
aspects of the project that do not otherwise meet permitting criteria or to
compensate for unavoidable natural resource losses. It may include purchase,
creation, restoration, and/or enhancement of wetlands, performing works or
modification that causes a net improvement in water quality or aquatic habitat, or
enhancement of the hydrology of wetland areas that have been altered,
impounded or drained. Before considering mitigation, all reasonable measures
must first be taken to avoid and minimize the adverse impacts to natural
resources which othen/vise rendered the project unpermittable. Compensatory
mitigation, by which wetlands and threatened and endangered species habitat
are purchased, created, enhanced and/or restored to compensate for the loss of
such lands, should be of the same type, or should replace the same functions
and values, as that destroyed or degraded.

The applicant for development approval shall submit to the County copies of any
applicable local, State and Federal applications, permits, authorizations, letters of
exemption, or statements prior to review by the County if activities conducted
pursuant to such County issued permit would impact any natural resource
requiring mitigation under this section. The County’s mitigation provisions and
standards are primary.

The County shall establish a system for mitigation banking or an in-lleu fee
program, to be accepted by the USACOE and the FDEP, whereby the applicant
may financially contribute to a fund to purchase or restore wetlands and
environmentally sensitive lands. (Ord. No. 97-51, Section 1, 10-2-1997)

This area intentionally left blank

Page 4 of 5



2007~0®1030 BCC
Section 5. Severability. MIQ- 15. 2007 Page 13

It is declared the intent of the Board of County Commissioners that if any
subsection, clause, sentence, provision or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid
or unconstitutional by a Court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or
unconstitutionality shall not be so construed as to render invalid or unconstitutional the
remaining provisions of this Ordinance.

Section 6. Inclusion in the Code.

It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of
this Ordinance shall become and be made a part of the Escambia County Code; and
that the sections of this Ordinance may be renumbered or relettered and the word
“ordinance” may be changed to “section," “article,” or such other appropriate word or
phrase in order to accomplish such intentions.

Section 7. Effective Date.

This Ordinance shall become effective upon its filing with the Department of
State.

DONE AND ENACTED this [Q#l' day of 2007.

BOARD OF'COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

By. 551/n
' Kevin W. White, Chairman

ATTEST: ERNIE LEE MAGAHA Date Wed‘tIiI'EB;;'/~,, Clerk of the Circwt Court (92/ -2 fig
.............. "a I?

:5 9 «.1 . This document approved as to formSW . ' - and leg HEN cy
‘_ puty Clerk By 9/‘-. .v‘ Ow s‘ .fil;’:;"§€\ .‘y‘ Title [DQOu‘Iv COL“, {.V Afior4'.“ f ne<SEAL> Date ado/0’7 ’ 7

ENACTED: August 16, 2007

FILED WITH DEPARTMENT OF STATE: August 22, 2007

EFFECTIVE: August 22. 2007
H:\PZ\BCC 2007\GMR\Supporting documents\5—45 0rd lot of record clean version.doc

Page 5 of 5



 

PB: 6-1-20 Page 1 
Re: Lot of Record 
DRAFT 1 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2020-_______ 1 

AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING 2 
PART III OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, THE 3 
LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS 4 
AMENDED, AMENDING THE FOLLOWING SECTION TO CHANGE THE 5 
EFFECTIVE DATE FOR A LOT OF RECORD FROM  FEBRUARY 8, 1996 6 
TO APRIL 16, 2015: CHAPTER 6, DEFINITIONS, SECTION 6-0.3 7 
“TERMS DEFINED”; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING 8 
FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 9 
DATE. 10 

 WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of Florida has, in Chapter 125, Florida 11 
Statutes, conferred upon local governments the authority to adopt regulations designed 12 
to promote the public health, safety, and general welfare of its citizenry; and 13 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of County Commissioners 14 
of Escambia County that the following regulation is hereby adopted. 15 

Section 1. Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land Development 16 
Code of Escambia County, Chapter 6 DEFINITIONS, Section 6-0.3 “TERMS DEFINED” 17 
is hereby amended as follows (words underlined are additions and words stricken are 18 
deletions):  19 

Sec. 6-0.3 Terms defined. 20 

Lot of record. A lot that is part of a subdivision that has been recorded in the official 21 
records of Escambia County, or a lot or parcel described by metes and bounds, and the 22 
description of which has been so recorded or accepted on or before February 8, 1996 23 
April 16, 2015. A lot of record does not include contiguous multiple lots under single 24 
ownership. 25 

Section 3. Severability. 26 

 If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is held to be invalid or 27 
unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, the holding shall in no way affect the 28 
validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance. 29 

Section 4. Inclusion in the code. 30 

The Board of County Commissioners intends that the provisions of this ordinance 31 
will be codified as required by Section 125.68, Florida Statutes (2018), and that the 32 



 

PB: 6-1-20 Page 2 
Re: Lot of Record 
DRAFT 1 
 

sections of this ordinance may be renumbered or relettered and the word “ordinance” may 1 
be changed to “section,” “article,” or such other appropriate word of phrase in order to 2 
accomplish its intentions.  3 

Section 5. Effective date. 4 

This ordinance shall become effective upon filling with the Department of State.  5 

DONE AND ENACTED this ____ day of ________________________, 2020.  6 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 7 
      ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 8 

By:  _________________________________ 9 
ATTEST:  Pam Childers    , Chairman 10 
Clerk of the Circuit Court 11 
 12 

By:  ___________________________ Date Executed:  ________________________ 13 

  Deputy Clerk 14 

 15 

(SEAL) 16 
 17 
ENACTED: 18 
 19 
FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE: 20 
 21 
EFFECTIVE DATE:  22 
 23 



   
Planning Board-Regular   7. B.           
Meeting Date: 06/01/2020  

Agenda Item:
RVs Allowed for Living in District 5 where Mobile Homes are Allowed Discussion.

Attachments
Powerpoint



General Discussion for Propose LDC Amendment  For PB on  June 1st, 2020.  

• RV used for living, sleeping, or household purposes on a  lot or parcel without any time limitation in 
District 5 only and where mobile homes are a permitted use.

• See Slide of  Zoning Districts that  allow for Mobile homes as a 
permitted use  



USE SINGLE MOBILE HOME

ZONING DISTRICT PERMITTED CONDITIONAL USE

MAIN LAND DISTRICTS AG ALLOWED
RR ALLOWED

RMU ALLOWED

HDMU ALLOWED
Com ALLOWED

Only with MU-U or MU-S 
HC/LI Allowed

Only with MU-U or MU-S
I Only if the lot is  Lot of Record  

and In MU-U or MU-S  and Only 
MH.  

CURRENT LDC ALLOWANCES



Existing Regulation for Usage of RV  

Sec. 4-7.10 Recreational vehicles. 
Recreational vehicle are designed primarily as temporary living quarters for recreational, camping, or 
travel use. Except under the disaster recovery temporary use provisions of this chapter, the use of a 
recreational vehicle as living quarters for more than 14 days in any calendar year is prohibited except 
in duly licensed campgrounds or mobile home parks. All recreational vehicles located in residential 
districts, except for those being stored and not occupied and located on the same lot with the principal 
structure, shall be removed within 60 days from notification.  



Proposed  RV to  be  allowed in  District 5 in its entirety, with the stipulation that only in zoning districts 
where a mobile homes  are  allowed as a permitted use?

Proposed  Provisions and Conditions.
1. Must be a  lot of record as per the applicable regulations of the LDC

2. Setbacks per the  required zoning district 

3. Only one recreational vehicle allowed per lot

4. Lot may not be subdivided 

5. Lot may not be located within a platted subdivision.

6. Vehicle may not be located in a FEMA designated Special Flood Hazard Area, in a designated Coastal High 
Hazard Area or within Escambia County designated Evacuation Zones A, B or C and must meet all other 
floodplain management regulations for RVs 

7. Amending   Section 4.7.10 Recreational Vehicles Usage (14 Day Requirement)

Possible  Amendments to the LDC to Minimize Adverse Impacts to the Surrounding parcels 



Other Areas Concerns that will need to Reviewed if there is Direction to move Forward:

 RV Definitions (Federal, State and County) Are there any conflicts with any  governmental 
agencies rules and or procedures in allowing this as  a County Ordinance? 

 Permitting for the following as approved per the applicable statues and the applicable 
agency : sufficient water supply, sewage collection and disposal; plumbing and back-flow 
prevention; garbage and refuse collection and disposal… The provisions will have to 
addressed in the LDC.

 Process and  Procedures included  application, fees, land use review and approval (what 
type) etc. 

 Enforcement—Who will inspect for all the permitting requirements as stipulated above.



Florida Statutes Title XXIII. Motor Vehicles § 320.01. Definitions, general

As used in the Florida Statutes, except as otherwise provided, the term:
(1) “Motor vehicle” means:

(b) A recreational vehicle-type unit primarily designed as temporary living quarters for 
recreational, camping, or travel use, which either has its own motive power or is mounted on 
or drawn by another vehicle. Recreational vehicle-type units, when traveling on the public 
roadways of this state, must comply with the length and width provisions of s. 316.515 , as 
that section may hereafter be amended. As defined below, the basic entities are:

1.  The “travel trailer,” which is a vehicular portable unit, mounted on wheels, of such a size or 
weight as not to require special highway movement permits when drawn by a motorized 
vehicle. It is primarily designed and constructed to provide temporary living quarters for 
recreational, camping, or travel use. It has a body width of no more than 8 1/2 feet and an 
overall body length of no more than 40 feet when factory-equipped for the road.

https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&originatingContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&pubNum=1000006&refType=LQ&originatingDoc=I9afb7b30ba9311e6b23bc09b6e053ac2&cite=FLSTS316.515


2. The “camping trailer,” which is a vehicular portable unit mounted on wheels and 
constructed with collapsible partial sidewalls which fold for towing by another vehicle and 
unfold at the campsite to provide temporary living quarters for recreational, camping, or travel 
use.
3. The “truck camper,” which is a truck equipped with a portable unit designed to be loaded 
onto, or affixed to, the bed or chassis of the truck and constructed to provide temporary living 
quarters for recreational, camping, or travel use.
4. The “motor home,” which is a vehicular unit which does not exceed the length, height, and 
width limitations provided in s. 316.515 , is a self-propelled motor vehicle, and is primarily 
designed to provide temporary living quarters for recreational, camping, or travel use.
5. The “private motor coach,” which is a vehicular unit which does not exceed the length, 
width, and height limitations provided in s. 316.515(9) , is built on a self-propelled bus type 
chassis having no fewer than three load-bearing axles, and is primarily designed to provide 
temporary living quarters for recreational, camping, or travel use.
6. The “van conversion,” which is a vehicular unit which does not exceed the length and 
width limitations provided in s. 316.515 , is built on a self-propelled motor vehicle chassis, and 
is designed for recreation, camping, and travel use.

https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&originatingContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&pubNum=1000006&refType=LQ&originatingDoc=I9afba240ba9311e6b23bc09b6e053ac2&cite=FLSTS316.515
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&originatingContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&pubNum=1000006&refType=SP&originatingDoc=I9afbc950ba9311e6b23bc09b6e053ac2&cite=FLSTS316.515
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&originatingContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&pubNum=1000006&refType=LQ&originatingDoc=I9afbc951ba9311e6b23bc09b6e053ac2&cite=FLSTS316.515


7. The “park trailer,” which is a transportable unit which has a body width not exceeding 14 
feet and which is built on a single chassis and is designed to provide seasonal or temporary 
living quarters when connected to utilities necessary for operation of installed fixtures and 
appliances. The total area of the unit in a setup mode, when measured from the exterior 
surface of the exterior stud walls at the level of maximum dimensions, not including any bay 
window, does not exceed 400 square feet when constructed to ANSI A-119.5 standards, and 
500 square feet when constructed to United States Department of Housing and Urban 
Development Standards. The length of a park trailer means the distance from the exterior of 
the front of the body (nearest to the drawbar and coupling mechanism) to the exterior of the 
rear of the body (at the opposite end of the body), including any protrusions.
8. The “fifth-wheel trailer,” which is a vehicular unit mounted on wheels, designed to provide 
temporary living quarters for recreational, camping, or travel use, of such size or weight as 
not to require a special highway movement permit, of gross trailer area not to exceed 400 
square feet in the setup mode, and designed to be towed by a motorized vehicle that 
contains a towing mechanism that is mounted above or forward of the tow vehicle's rear axle.





   
Planning Board-Regular   7. C.           
Meeting Date: 06/01/2020  

Agenda Item:
Tiny Homes Discussion.

Attachments
Presentation
FRC Appendix Q



Tiny House Construction
TWO ISSUES:

• CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS 

• LAND USE 

SEEKING:

• DIRECTION ON MOVING FORWARD ON 
ADOPTION OF APPENDIX Q (FBCR)

1



Tiny House Construction Regulation
AVAILABLE STANDARDS FOR 
CONSTRUCTING A TINY HOME IN 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY

• CURRENTLY: FLORIDA BUILDING CODE 
RESIDENTIAL (FBCR)

• UPCOMING: APPENDIX Q TINY HOUSE 
REQUIREMENTS IF ADOPTED

2



Tiny House Construction 
Regulation

•Appendix Q is contained within the upcoming 7th edition (2020) 
Florida Building Code Residential (FBCR). Effective date 12/31/2020 

•To be considered a Tiny House the floor area cannot be over 400 
square feet. A larger home must meet normal building code 
standards

•The intent of appendix Q is to provide some relief from more 
stringent requirements found in the (FBCR), e.g. ceiling heights, 
individual room areas, stair requirements, etc. 

•Appendix Q must be adopted by the jurisdiction for enforcement. FBC 
101.2.1

3



If Appendix Q is adopted  in the Building Code by the BCC, all the provisions and 
regulations of the current Land Development Code (LDC) applies. It  will allow for 
these  types of structures:
• In  all zoning districts - as a single-family dwelling  per lot of record as of  February 8, 1996 

• As  an accessory dwelling unit where a single-family dwelling unit exists 

• Without a  major site plan review, up to 4 units in all zoning districts where multi-family  
dwellings and/or multi-developments are allowed

• To allow for tiny homes within zoning districts that do not allow for multi-family dwellings 
and/or multi-developments, a rezoning to a zoning district that does allow for multi-family or
LDC amendment change would be needed

• Under the LDC, tiny houses cannot be recreational vehicles such as travel/camping trailers,  
motor homes, private motor coaches, fifth-wheel trailers, or park models   

4



Zoning Chart with LDC Definitions
ZONING CATEGORIES ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS
AGR- SINGLE FAMILY YES
RR- SINGLE FAMILY YES
RMU- SINGLE FAMILY YES
LDR- SINGLE FAMILY YES
LDMU- SINGLE FAMILY YES
MDR- SINGLE FAMILY YES
HDR- SINGLE FAMILY YES
HDMU- SINGLE FAMILY YES
COM- SINGLE FAMILY YES
HC/LI- SINGLE FAMILY 
PREDOMINANT COMMERCIAL YES

IND- SINGLE FAMILY NO
REC- SINGLE FAMILY NO
CON- SINGLE FAMILY NO

PUB- SINGLE FAMILY NO

LDMU- TWO FAMILY & MULTI-FAMILY

HDR- TWO FAMILY & MULTI-FAMILY

HDMU- TWO FAMILY & MULTI-FAMILY

COM- TWO FAMILY& MULTI-FAMILY

HC/LI- SINGLE FAMILY PREDOMINANT COMMERCIAL

• Multi-family dwelling. A building that contains three or more dwelling 
units in any arrangement, including triplex and quadruplex building 
forms, and apartment and condominium forms of tenancy and 
ownership.

• Development, single-family. Development in which only one single-
family dwelling is allowed per lot, attached or detached, except where 
an accessory dwelling unit is allowed with the principal single-family 
dwelling. 

• Development, multi-family. Development in which any combination of 
single-family, two-family, or multi-family dwellings provide for three or 
more dwelling units on a single lot. 

5



To permit 4 or more tiny homes on a single lot within single-family 
zoning districts (like MDR etc.), new language and provisions within the 
LDC must be approved by the BCC. 

• A  comprehensive approach (review) of the existing regulations shall be done, for consideration of allowing  (options) and 
flexibility within the specified zoning districts for  modifications of the stated provisions. 

• Due to the intent and purpose of single-family districts, consideration of provisions that will provide for protection and 
minimize adverse impacts in well-established communities or neighborhoods will be presented for discussion with the 
Planning Board (PB).  For example, do we want to adopt provisions that prohibit this type of development within platted 
subdivisions with single-family districts only, or do we want to adopt provisions that require conditional use approval by the 
Board of Adjustment (BOA) within single-family districts.  This will encourage citizen engagement and public notification of 
pending development in their prospective communities for this desired use.  What about in designated flood zones and 
coastal barrier areas like Pensacola Beach and Perdido Key?

• A review of site-specific standards for changes such as an increase or reduction in the setbacks for front, side and rear yards,
an increase or a reduction in the lot width requirement, or a maximum amount of structures on the single lot with  higher 
buffer standards when adjacent or contiguous to existing single-family homes or single-family districts.

• Definition of Tiny Homes can be more stringent with an emphasis on what is not a tiny home as regulated by the LDC.

6



Next Steps - Tentative Course Of Action 

• Staff will Continue Research 

• Meetings with all citizens and interested parties….Strongly Encouraged (if requested)

• Collaborative Working Draft on the Proposed Ordinance with staff for comments prior to
discussion of the Working Draft with the PB

• Fine-tuning of  Working Draft  

• Final Draft presented to PB

• Public  Hearing(s) with PB, with recommendation from PB to the BCC – (Possible Committee of
Whole Discussion with BCC, if requested) 

• BCC Public  Hearing(s)

7



 

APPENDIX Q RESERVED TINY HOUSES 

 
SECTION AQ101 GENERAL 

AQ101.1 Scope. This appendix shall be applicable to tiny 
houses used as single dwelling units. Tiny houses shall 
com-ply with this code except as otherwise stated in this 
appendix. 

SECTION AQ102 DEFINITIONS 
AQ102.1 General. The following words and terms shall, for 
the purposes of this appendix, have the meanings shown 
herein. Refer to Chapter 2 of this code for general 
definitions. 
EGRESS ROOF ACCESS WINDOW. A skylight or roof 
window designed and installed to satisfy the emergency 
escape and rescue opening requirements of Section R310.2. 
LANDING PLATFORM. A landing provided as the top step 
of a stairway accessing a loft. 
LOFT. A floor level located more than 30 inches (762 mm) 
above the main floor, open to the main floor on one or 
more sides with a ceiling height of less than 6 feet 8 inches 
(2032mm) and used as a living or sleeping space. 
TINY HOUSE. A dwelling that is 400 square feet (37 m2) 
or less in floor area excluding lofts. 

SECTION AQ103 CEILING HEIGHT 
AQ103.1 Minimum ceiling height. Habitable space and 
hallways in tiny houses shall have a ceiling height of not 
less than 6 feet 8 inches (2032 mm). Bathrooms, toilet 
rooms and kitchens shall have a ceiling height of not less 
than 6 feet 4 inches (1930 mm). Obstructions including, 
but not limited to, beams, girders, ducts and lighting, shall 
not extend below these minimum ceiling heights. 

Exception: Ceiling heights in lofts are permitted to 
be less than 6 feet 8 inches (2032 mm). 

SECTION AQ104 LOFTS 
AQ104.1 Minimum loft area and dimensions. Lofts used 

as a sleeping or living space shall meet the minimum area 



and dimension requirements of Sections AQ104.1.1 through 
AQ104.1.3. 

AQ104.1.1 Minimum area. Lofts shall have a floor 
area of not less than 35 square feet (3.25 m2). 
AQ104.1.2 Minimum dimensions. Lofts shall be 
not less than 5 feet (1524 mm) in any horizontal 
dimension. 
AQ104.1.3 Height effect on loft area. Portions of a 
loft with a sloped ceiling measuring less than 3 feet 
(914 mm) from the finished floor to the finished 
ceiling shall not be considered as contributing to the 
minimum required area for the loft. 

Exception: Under gable roofs with a minimum 
slope of 6 units vertical in 12 units horizontal 
(50-percent slope), portions of a loft with a 
sloped ceiling measuring less than 16 inches 
(406 mm) from the finished floor to the 
finished ceiling shall not be considered as 
contributing to the minimum required area for 
the loft. 

AQ104.2 Loft access. The access to and primary egress 
from lofts shall be of any type described in Sections 
AQ104.2.1 through AQ104.2.4. 

AQ104.2.1 Stairways. Stairways accessing lofts 
shall comply with this code or with Sections 
AQ104.2.1.1 through AQ104.2.1.5. 
AQ104.2.1.1 Width. Stairways accessing a loft shall 
not be less than 17 inches (432 mm) in clear width at 
or above the handrail. The width below the handrail 
shall be not less than 20 inches (508 mm). 
AQ104.2.1.2 Headroom. The headroom in stairways 

accessing a loft shall be not less than 6 feet 2 inches(1880 
mm), as measured vertically, from a sloped line 
connecting the tread or landing platform nosings in the 
middle of their width. 

AQ104.2.1.3 Treads and risers. Risers for stairs 
accessing a loft shall be not less than 7 inches (178 mm) 
and not more than 12 inches (305 mm) in height. Tread 
depth and riser height shall be calculated in accordance 
with one of the following formulas: 



1.  The tread depth shall be 20 inches (508 mm) 
minus four-thirds of the riser height. 

2.  The riser height shall be 15 inches (381 mm) 
minus three-fourths of the tread depth. 

AQ104.2.1.4  Landing platforms. The top tread 
and riser of stairways accessing lofts shall be 
constructed as a landing platform where the loft 
ceiling height is less than 6 feet 2 inches (1880 mm) 
where the stairway meets the loft. The landing 
platform shall be 18 inches to 22 inches (457 to 559 
mm) in depth measured from the nosing of the 
landing platform to the edge of the loft, and 16 to 
18 inches (406 to 457 mm) in height measured from 
the landing platform to the loft floor. 
AQ104.2.1.5 Handrails. Handrails shall comply 

with Section R311.7.8. 
AQ104.2.1.6 Stairway guards. Guards at open 
sides of stairways shall comply with Section R312.1. 

AQ104.2.2 Ladders. Ladders accessing lofts shall comply 
with Sections AQ104.2.1 and AQ104.2.2. 

AQ104.2.2.1 Size and capacity. Ladders 
accessing lofts shall have a rung width of not less 
than 12 inches(305 mm), and 10-inch (254 mm) to 
14-inch (356 mm)spacing between rungs. Ladders 
shall be capable of supporting a 200-pound (75 kg) 
load on any rung. Rung spacing shall be uniform 
within 3/8 inch (9.5 mm). 
AQ104.2.2.2 Incline. Ladders shall be installed at 

70 to 80 degrees from horizontal. 
AQ104.2.3 Alternating tread devices. Alternating tread 
devices accessing lofts shall comply with Sections 
R311.7.11.1 and R311.7.11.2. The clear width at and 
below the handrails shall be not less than 20 inches 
(508mm). 
AQ104.2.4 Ships ladders. Ships ladders accessing lofts 
shall comply with Sections R311.7.12.1 and R311.7.12.2. 
The clear width at and below handrails shall be not less 
than 20 inches (508 mm). 
AQ104.2.5 Loft Guards. Loft guards shall be located 
along the open side of lofts. Loft guards shall be not less 



than 36 inches (914 mm) in height or one-half of the clear 
height to the ceiling, whichever is less. 

SECTION AQ105 EMERGENCY ESCAPE AND RESCUE 
OPENINGS 

AQ105.1 General. Tiny houses shall meet the 
requirements of Section R310 for emergency escape and 
rescue openings. 
Exception: Egress roof access windows in lofts used as 
sleeping rooms shall be deemed to meet the requirements 
of Section R310 where installed such that the bottom of 
the opening is not more than 44 inches (1118 mm) above 
the loft floor, provided the egress roof access window 
complies with the minimum opening area requirements of 
Section R310.2.1. 

(F7942) /(I-Code) 
 
 


	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes
	Att1_Draft March 3, 2020 Regular Planning Board Meeting Minutes
	Att2_Monthly Action Follow-Up
	Att3_Six Month Outlook
	PLANNING BOARD MONTHLY SCHEDULE
	SIX MONTH OUTLOOK FOR JUNE 2020

	SSA-2020-01
	Att1_Working Case File
	SSA-2020-01
	Location Map
	Zoning Map
	Current FLU Map
	Proposed FLU Map
	Aerial Map
	CRA Map
	Photos
	Letter of request
	Application
	Proof Of Ownership
	Florida Master Site File forms
	Level of Service letters
	Site Lay Out
	Applicants maps
	Applicants Data and Analysis
	Boundary Survey
	Staff Analysis
	TTO Comments

	Att2_Draft Ordinance
	Lot of Record Date Change Discussion
	Att1_2007 Ordinance and Recommendation
	Att2_Draft Ordinance
	RVs Allowed for Living in District 5 where Mobile Homes are Allowed Discussion
	Att1_Powerpoint
	General Discussion for Propose LDC Amendment  For PB on  June 1st, 2020.  
	Slide Number 2
	Existing Regulation for Usage of RV  
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9

	Tiny Homes Discussion
	Att1_Presentation
	Tiny House Construction
	Tiny House Construction Regulation
	Tiny House Construction Regulation
	If Appendix Q is adopted  in the Building Code by the BCC, all the provisions and regulations of the current Land Development Code (LDC) applies. It  will allow for these  types of structures:
	Zoning Chart with LDC Definitions
	To permit 4 or more tiny homes on a single lot within single-family zoning districts (like MDR etc.), new language and provisions within the LDC must be approved by the BCC. 
	Next Steps - Tentative Course Of Action 

	Att2_FRC Appendix Q

